
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Regular Meeting 

City Council Chambers, City Hall, 57 N. Liberty St., Cumberland 

 

DATE:    January 21, 2020 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. 5:00 p.m. - Convene in open session for the purpose of closing the meeting for an executive 

session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b) (1) and (7) or the General Provisions Article of the 

Annotated Code of Maryland to 1) discuss board and commission appointments; 2) to receive 

legal advice regarding certain issues pertaining to regulatory requirements of the Department of 

Environmental Protection and the PA Public Utility Commission; 3) to receive legal advice 

regarding pending liability claims; and 4) to receive legal advice regarding several items of 

proposed legislation.  

2. Executive Session 

OPEN SESSION 

1. 6:15 p.m. - Reconvene into open session 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary Statement of closed meetings held January 14 and January 21, 2020 

Presentations 

1. Census update provided by Mark Widmyer, Governor's Office, Western Maryland Representative 

2. Carver Community Center Overview provided by Kathy McKenney, Community Development 

Programs Manager 

Director's Reports 

(A) Administrative Services 

Administrative Services monthly report for November, 2019 



(B) Engineering 

Engineering Division monthly report for November, 2019  

(C) Public Works 

Maintenance Division monthly report for December, 2019 

(D) Fire 

Fire Department monthly report for December, 2019 

(E) Police 

Police Department monthly report for December, 2019 

(F) Utilities - Treatment Plants 

Utilities - Treatment Plants monthly report for November 2019 

(G) Utilities - Flood, Water, Sewer 

Utilities Division-Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for December, 2019 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Executive Session and Work Session Minutes of October 8, 2019, the Work 

Session and Special Public Meeting Minutes of October 22, 2019, and the Executive, Regular and 

Work Session Minutes of November 5, 2019 

New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Order 26,584 - authorizing execution of Change Order No.1 with First Fruits Excavating, Inc. 

for City project "Cumberland Street Retaining Wall (24-18-M)" in the increased value of 

$33,280, bringing the new contract value to $152,530 and providing an additional 60 

calendar days on the project timeline 

Order 26,585 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute Change Order No. 1 with 

Miracle/Taylor Sports and Recreation to incorporate Prevailing Wage Rates for an 

increased amount of $4,616.91 bringing the total contract amount to $52,655.91 

Order 26,586 - accepting the bid of Harbel, Inc. for City project "Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs 

– Phase 3" (38-19-BR) in the estimated unit cost of $82,637.00, to provide for the 

replacement of overhang and enclosed sidewalk on the Koon Dam Bridge 

Order 26,587 - declaring a 2011 International Ambulance (VIN: 3HAMNAAL5BL408030) as 

surplus equipment and authorizing it for sale or trade-in 

Order 26,588 - authorizing Acting Chief of Police Chuck Ternent to accept a FY20 GOCCP 

Police Recruitment & Retention Grant in the amount of $24,000 for the purchase of 

recruitment media, pay incentives to officers for successful candidate referrals, and 

signing bonuses for successful academy trainees 



Order 26,589 - accepting the bids for purchase of one new mid-size SUV from Thomas 

Hyundai ($27,797), and one 1/2 ton pickup truck ($33,594) and one 1/2 ton work truck 

($30,939.60) from Diehl’s Ford Sales 

Order 26,590 - accepting the Sole Source proposal of Marshall Ruby and Sons for repair of the 

rotating mechanical screens at Evitts Creek Pumping Station, in the amount of $48,000 

Order 26,591 - accepting the Sole Source bid of CAMCO, Inc. for the repair of twenty-five 

(25) High Voltage Breakers at the JJD Water Reclamation Facility in the not-to-exceed 

cost of $125,000 

Order 26,592 - appointing Anita Simmons, Natural Resource Technician for the City of 

Cumberland, to the Evitts Creek Steering Committee as City Appointee I, to fill the seat 

vacated by Paul Eriksson 

Order 26,593 - declaring a 2007 Chrysler Aspen (VIN #1A8HW58287F586936) to be surplus 

and authorizing it for sale or trade in 

Order 26,594 - adopting a revised Investment Policy effective this date, to govern the 

investment of public funds while meeting daily cash flow demands 

Order 26,595 - declaring certain parcels of property at 400 N. Mechanic Street to be surplus 

and authorizing the transfer of the properties to the Cumberland Economic Development 

Commission after the passage of twenty (20) days from the date of this Order and the 

passage of an Ordinance to effect the transfer 

Order 26,596 - approving Amendment #7 to the Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) program funding pertaining to the Dental Access Program 

Order 26,597 - authorizing execution of a Bill of Sale with MD Broadband Cooperative, Inc. 

to sell, assign and deliver certain assets to MD Broadband relative to the MOU pertaining 

to the construction of fiber optic infrastructure in the area of downtown Cumberland   

Order 26,598 - authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City, 

the Cumberland Economic Development Commission, and the Allegany County 

Commissioners regarding the centralization of an economic development program for the 

City and the County 

Order 26,599 - authorizing execution of an Amendment to the 2017 MHAA Grant - Canal 

Place Heritage Area Partnership Programming (FY17) pertaining to several revised 

financial documentation policies for awarded grants  

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Administrative Services monthly report for November, 2019 

  



Administrative Services Monthly Report for November, 2019 
 

 

 

 

January 21, 2020 (1/7/20 Meeting Cancelled) 

 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

City Hall 

Cumberland, Maryland 21502 

 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

 

The following report is submitted by the Department of Administrative Services for the month of November 

2019: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Management Information Systems (MIS) Department 
November 2019 

 
 

 

 

Statistics 

 

135 completed help desk requests 

207 open help desk requests 

 

Activities 

 

Major department initiatives in the past month include: 

 

 Continue working with Community Development on new software deployment project 

 Continue troubleshooting/refining mobile data terminal setup in police cars 

 Continue making network changes to update our environment and improve security 

 Continue working with AT&T on migrating phones to FirstNET 

 
 

 

 

 



Parks and Recreation 
November 2019 

 

 

Annual Tree Lighting Ceremony for the City of Cumberland – Downtown Cumberland Mall – Program 

coordinated with Mall Manager, Downtown Businesses, and the City was held Friday November 29, 2019. The 

Lighting of the Community Tree, Mall decorations, and the tree at Emmanuel Episcopal Church were 

illuminated by Mayor Ray Morriss.  This year’s tree was donated from the former Brad’s Pharmacy on 

Oldtown Rd, presently the new location branch of Potomac Federal Credit Union.   The Holiday procession 

included a horse-drawn carriage with Mrs. Claus, Elves and Miss Heritage Days and Mill White Oak.  

Costumed Disney Characters walked in the procession.   City police vehicles began the parade with Santa 

Claus arriving on the Ladder Truck.  The event, hosted by The Mayor and City Council, included Open 

Houses and other Holiday events and activities held throughout the day and evening.  -   

200 bags of candy were distributed to children by Santa and his helpers. 

* Volunteers from the Finan Center Recreation therapy volunteer program under the direction of Melissa 

Netting prepared the candy bags. 

Preprogram entertainment was provided by Mill Heritage Days, Kayla Steed, Mill White Oak, Gretchen 

Stenger, Lepley’s Dance Studio, Mountain City Center for the Arts, and Cumberland Theatre. 

  

Field Usage: 

 Football Practice – Youth League team practice at Flynn and Northcraft Fields, with lights, for the 

league playoffs all-star games and travel teams 

 Adult Flag Football concluded for the season 

*(This concluded field usage of the season, facilities at the sports complex and other ball fields are being 

winterized for the year by maintenance.) 

Seasonal employee at Mason Complex, Chuck Lowery concluded work for the season. 

 

Co-ed Volleyball League:  

The Fall/Winter League is under the direction of Carol Brown, and began in November and is running until 

April.  Games are played on Wednesday evenings using South Penn Elementary School.  7 teams are 

registered (56 players) with three weeks of games – 9 matches – 144 participants  

 

Meetings attended: 

 Tree lighting meeting 

 Volleyball League program meeting 

 Cumberland Garden Club – Christmas Decorations at Riverside Park 

 Staff meetings 

 November Rec. Board meeting cancelled due to low attendance 

 

Upcoming: 

 December Recreation Board meeting 12/2/19  

 After School Christmas programs at the museum  

 Fireworks for New Year’s Eve 

 Planning for 2020 Spring/Summer season and seasonal employees 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Community Development Report 
November 2019 

 

 

 

CODE COMPLIANCE 

 

Code Enforcement Activity: 

 

31 calls with 17 resolved.  

Closed 15 ad’l cases from previous months. 

 

Nuisance & Junk Vehicle Property Maintenance Building Code 

Reported 22 Reported 11 Reported 1 

Resolved 14 Resolved 2 Resolved 0     

 

Housing Code  Zoning 

Reported 7 Reported 4  

Resolved 1 Resolved 0 

 

 
 

Note: CD is up 15% for FY20 on resolving reports vs. FY19; 49% increase from FY18.; 181% increase from FY17  

 



 

 
 

 

Permits, Applications, and Licenses      

 

Building Permits  Occupancy Permits  Plan reviews, etc.  

Received: 6 Received: 1 Received: 0  

Issued: 5    

    

COA Permits  Rental Licenses  Housing Inspections 

Received: 1 Issued/Renewed: 7 Conducted: 41   

Issued: 1   Passed: 41  

 

Demolitions 

Received: 7  

        

Revenue  

Building Permits ............................................. $5,236.00 

Bldg. Permits, Miscellaneous.............................. .90.00 

Occupancy Permits ............................................... 30.00 

Utility Permits  .................................................. 6925.00 

Plan Reviews, Amendments & Appeals .......... 100.00 

Municipal Infractions/Citations ............................ 0.00 

Rental Licenses (new & renewals) .................... 975.00 

Housing Inspection Requests  ............................... 0.00 



Certificates of Appropriateness .......................... 30.00 

 

TOTAL ........................................................... $13,286.00 

 

Demolition Permit - Bonds ........................... 10,500.00 

 

 

 

Code Compliance Manager Report – Noted Activity 

 

 

 Final review of site plan for Cumberland Gateway Project completed and ready for Planning 

Commission review. 

 Notice of Violation posted to:  210–212 Arch St., 15 W. Second St., 553 Patterson Ave., 847 Braddock 

Rd., 26 W. First St., 127 Utah Ave., 15 W. Second St., 127 Utah St., 229 Columbia St., 708 Elm St., 311-313 

Arch St., 424 Walnut St., 26 W. First St., 30 W. First St., 25 Boone St., 109 Wempe Dr, 553 Patterson Ave., 

717 Montgomery Ave, and 521 Woodside Ave. 

 Focus on friendly letters for nuisance and property maintenance issues on Gephart Dr. and Green St. 

areas.        

 Posted 513 Fayette Street as Unfit for Habitation with 5 large dogs removed by AC Animal Control at 

515 Fayette St. 

 Final Walk through for ‘Chrisclean Laundry’ laundromat located at 732 Oldtown Rd. showing $101,000 

estimate cost of construction. 

 Judgement to Abate received for 421 Arch St.  

 Court date scheduled requesting abatement of 122-124 Columbia St.  

 Began monitoring the status of Blight Committee’s top 25 blighted properties. 

 Continue monitoring condition of City owned properties. 

 Monitored clean-up and boarding-up of 421 Arch Street.  

 7 applications received from the Cumberland Gateway Real Estate for demolition of 215 Emily St, 209 

Cecil St., 403, 505, 525, 527, and 529 Maryland Ave. 

 

 

 

Community Services Specialist - activity notable from norm: 

 

 

 Attended 3 of 4 Citizen meetings. 

 Compiled neighborhood group info for CD Specialist. 

 Updated MDE local lead inspector list. 

 Updated Blight Committee’s top 25 list per CCMgr based on CCO inspections and newly identified. 

 Updated CCMgr on neighborhood info (boundaries, reported complaints) for 2 mtgs. He attended. 

 Continue to assist DDC re: invoices during Executive Director’s leave. 

 SCBCA/South Cumberland Business & Civic Association met 11/12, 44 attended – 6 local delegation. 

o Relayed to Parade Committee M&CC Ordinance #3861 re: charging City expenses for events. 

o Handling 25 Salvation Army stocking stuffer bags for local children in need. 

o Relayed Lights Committee report to City re: Christmas light electrical issues on VA Avenue. 

 

 



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 

 

Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Monthly Activity Nov 2019         

Activity Year Initial Fund ERR 

Contrac

t Spent Remain 

ADA Sidewalk Imps (Cumberland St) 2015 $110,000.00 x   $20,517.54 $89,482.46 

CB Sidewalk funds Bellevue        2017 $23,192.54     $0.00 $23,192.54 

YMCA Lower Level Rehab Ph. 4 2018 $94,122.00 x x $94,122.00 $0.00 

CHNS Closing Cost Grant 2018 $13,403.00 x x $4,000.00 $9,403.00 

Friends Aware, Inc. Facility Rehab Ph. 4 2018 $79,913.00 x x $71,921.70 $7,991.30 

Riverside YMCA Rehab: Roof/Fence/Int. 

doors 2018 $13,403.00     $0.00 $13,403.00 

Family Crisis Resource Center Operations 2018 $10,903.00 x x $10,902.50 $0.00 

Incredible Years Parenting Program (The 

Family Junction) 2018 $16,403.00 x x $16,403.00 $0.00 

HRDC Emergency Assistance Program  2018 $21,653.00 x x $21,652.00 $0.00 

Amtrak Ph. 4 Infrastructure : Mechanic St. 

phase 2018 $136,923.00 x x 

$136,923.0

0 $0.00 

Program Income   YMCA Riverside 

Rehab: Roof/Fence/In doors 

2017 

year $16,224.73       $16,224.73 

Program Income 2019 2019 $1.44       $1.44 

correct on 11/26/19 

PRE

- Nov19 dr 

POS

T Oct 19 Draw   

    Orig.     Spent Remain 

2017 Admin 2017 $120,806.21     $91,767.17 $0.00 

2017 YMCA Riverside Rehab: 

Roof/Fence/Int. doors 2017 

Amendmen

t       $20,072.27 

2017 Constitution Park Grove 4 Inclusive 

Playground 2017 amendment       $8,966.77 

2017 Indirect Cost 2017 $9,683.00     $9,683.00 $0.00 

2017 Fair Housing 2017 $10,489.21     $10,489.21 $0.00 

2018 Admin re-programmed to Cumb. St. 2018 $125,322.00     $70,762.65 $58,465.14 

2018 Indirect Cost re-programmed to 

Cumb. St. 2018 $10,081.00     $9,280.54 $799.46 

2018 Fair Housing re-programmed to 

Cumb. St. 2018 $13,403.00     $9,616.17 $3,786.83 

          Activities 

$251,788.9

4 

          Admin(s) $0.00 

2014-2018 Funds         Total All 

$251,788.9

4 

Bellevue Sidewalks  decreased funds Dec 

2019 2019 $79,841.00 x x   $79,841.00 

HRDC Emergency Housing 2019 $25,000.00 x x   $25,000.00 

Admin 2019 $121,447.70 x n/a $8,154.98 $113,292.7



2 

Indirect Cost 2019 $10,552.30 x n/a $2,638.00 $7,914.30 

FH 2019 $10,000.00 x n/a $782.79 $9,217.21 

YMCA Gilcrist Ph. 5 Playground 2019 $77,000.00 x x   $77,000.00 

AHEC Dental Access 2019 $8,000.00 x x   $8,000.00 

Assoc. Charities Long Term 2019 $8,750.00 x x   $8,750.00 

Assoc. Charities Short Term 2019 $7,800.00 x x   $7,800.00 

Incredible Years Parenting Fam. Junct. 2019 $10,000.00 x x   $10,000.00 

PHA FCH Sidewalks 2019 $50,000.00 x     $50,000.00 

FCRC Shelter 2019 $10,500.00 x x   $10,500.00 

AHEC Denture Program 2019 $7,000.00 x x   $7,000.00 

ACM ADA WEX Loft Lift Rehab 2019 $40,000.00 x x   $40,000.00 

YMCA Riverside Rehab: Roof/Fence/Int. 

Doors 2019 $270,750.00 x x $87,800.00 

$182,950.0

0 

Const. Park Grove 4 Inclusive Playground 2019 $27,000.00 x     $27,000.00 

Summer @ Your Library 2019 $2,000.00 x x   $2,000.00 

Assoc. Charities Food Pantry 2019 $3,200.00 x x   $3,200.00 

Horizon Goodwill Job Training Program 2019 $21,000.00 x x   $21,000.00 

2019 Total Funds   $789,841.00       

$690,465.2

3 

Program Income 2019 $24.41       24.41 

    $789,865.41       

$690,489.6

4 

as of 11/26/2019 post October 2019 Draw             

 

 

 

Community Development Programs Manager Report 

November 2019 

 

 Sent Requests for Payment to DHCD  for all current Community Legacy-funded Leasehold 

Improvement expenses 

 Provided the County with the final Request for Payment for the Community Enhancement-funded 

Arch Street project 

 Attended the public presentation of the Conceptual Master Plan for the River Park at Canal Place on 

November 4th. 

 Assisted the Historic Preservation Commission at their November 20th regular public meeting 

 One new Certificate of Appropriateness was reviewed administratively for 208 North Centre Street 

 One Change/Amend Approval was reviewed administratively for 52 Baltimore Street 

 provided a recommendation to the City Administrator from the Parks and Recreation Board related to 

the rehabilitation of the fields at Mason Recreational Complex that were impacted by the CSO project 

 Received notice that the YMCA Pool Dehumidification Project was awarded $150,000 from Maryland’s 

Community Legacy Program 

 Prepared a draft environmental review MOU document and summary for the City Solicitor’s review 

and comment.  

 Provided a recommendation to the City Administrator from the Parks and Recreation Board related to 

the rehabilitation of the fields at Mason Recreational Complex that were impacted by the CSO project  



 There were no applications received for the November 1st deadline for the new Central Business 

District Accessibility Improvement Program.   

 

 

 

 

Comptroller’s Office 
November 2019 

 

Cash Flow: 

Attached for your review is a Cash Flow Summary for the month of November 2019.   

 

On November 1, 2019 the City had a cash balance of $6 million.  Disbursements exceeded receipts by $1.6 

thousand resulting in a cash balance of $4.4 million at November 30, 2019.    

 

As of November 30, 2019, the significant tax receivable balances were as reflected in the table below.     

 

   

Taxes receivable (General Fund) 3,794,351$        

Beg Balance New Billing Collections Bad Debt Ending Balance

FY 2020 3,659,560$        -$                   1,068,379$       -$               2,591,181$        

FY 2019 718,911             -$                   9,171                 709,740$           

FY 2018 362,494             -                     6,808                 -                  355,686             

FY 2017 41,474               -                     259                    -                  41,215               

FY 2016 29,606               -                     -                     -                  29,606               

FY 2015 26,695               -                     0                         -                  26,695               

FY 2014 16,108               -                     -                     -                  16,108               

FY 2013 12,068               -                     -                     -                  12,068               

FY 2012 5,716                  -                     -                     -                  5,716                  

FY 2011 3,282                  -                     52                       -                  3,230                  

Prior FY's 3,106                  -                     -                     -                  3,106                  

4,879,020$        -$                   1,084,669$       -$               3,794,351$        

The current year tax receivable balance is comprised of the following:

Real property (non-owner occupied) 1,022,224$        

Non-Corp Personal Property 7,726                  

Corporate Personal Property 183,676             

Real Property (semiannual payments) 1,377,555          

Real Property (Half Year) -                      

2,591,181$         
 

The annual retirement invoices ($1.9 million) will be paid in December – LEOPS (Police) $710K and other 

employees $1.2 million. 

 



The City liquidity position continues to be strong as illustrated in the following cash and investments 

table.  Restricted cash and investments are comprised primarily of invested bond proceeds restricted to 

associated capital projects and expenditures.   

Cash Investments

Beginning Balance 5,964,991$    15,412,686$   

Add:

Cash Receipts 6,007,355      24,954              

Investment Transfer -                   -                    

Less:

Disbursements 7,590,110      -                    

Investment Transfer -                   -                    

Ending Balance 4,382,236$    15,437,640$   

Restricted 331,780$        6,928$              

Cash and Investment Summary

November 30, 2019

 

 

The table below illustrates cash restrictions and restricted investments associated with specific expenditures 

and/or capital projects. 

 

 

Restricted Cash

11/1/2019 Increase Utilization 11/30/2019

Police Seizures 92,899$             5,056$     1,063$        96,892$              

Bowers Trust 76,706               -           -              76,706                

Restricted Lenders 106,341             -           -              106,341              

Other 51,841               -           -              51,841                

327,787$          5,056$     1,063$        331,780$            

Restricted Investments

11/1/2019 Increase Utilization 11/30/2019

DDC 6,916$               12$          -$            6,928$                

6,916$               12$          -$            6,928$                

 

 

Other restricted cash includes demolition bond deposits held as well as solicited donations for the Joe 

Maphis statute project.   

  

 

The DDC restricted investment was funded through donations and is restricted for the purpose of 

maintenance of the Wes Han Fountain in the Downtown Mall. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Capital Projects and Associated Debt: 

 

 

The tables below illustrate undrawn Maryland CDA bond proceeds as well as the accumulated debt draws 

and grants received associated with the ongoing Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) projects. 

 
Available Bond Proceeds

11/1/2019 Issue Utilization 11/30/2019

CDA 2014 535,488$           -$                    -$                535,488$          

CDA 2015 1,449,622          -                       -                   1,449,622        

CDA 2017 121,752              -                       66,352            55,400              

CDA 2018 2,055,693          -                       161,590          1,894,103        

CDA 2019 -                       3,582,000          -                   3,582,000        

4,162,555$        3,582,000$        227,942$       7,516,613$      

CSO Projects Debt Draws

11/1/2019 Issue Utilization 11/30/2019

Evitts Creek Debt 143,260$           -$                    -$                143,260$          

Evitts Creek Grant -                       -                       -                   -                     

WWTP Debt 2,818,581          -                       2,587              2,821,168        

WWTP Grant 20,880,915        -                       707,987          21,588,902      

23,842,756$     -$                    710,574$       24,553,330$     
 

 

The CDA 2017 $66K debt draw was for software and police vehicle equipment.  The CDA 2018 $161K debt 

draw was for water distribution and filtration plant improvements.  The City closed on $3.6 million of 

new CDA debt on November 21st.   The CDA 2019 debt will be utilized for a new ladder truck, street 

improvements, technical equipment, building improvements and vehicles. 

 

The Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) CSO project is nearing completion. The WWTP CSO November 

draw requests were $707K in BRF grants and $3K in new debt.  The WWTP CSO project is expected to be 

substantially complete in January 2020. 

 

The Evitts Creek CSO project is temporarily on hold as we are seeking funding to expand the project.  

 

Health Care Claims Analysis 

 

We have not received the October report yet.  The table below was discussed in the September 

comptroller report. 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

       Jeff Rhodes 

       City Administrator 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Engineering Division monthly report for November, 2019  

  



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

2008 05-08-S Evitts Creek CSO Upgrades Phase 
III (gravity sewer under railroad)

Replacement of CSO line connecting 
Evitts Creek Pump Station effluent with 
gravity line that parallels the Canal 
Towpath.  Said gravity line is being 
replaced under project 17-03-S(1).

Design NO CHANGE  This project has been complicated because of 
location of the sewer lines deep under the CSX Yards. The 
project has not been funded through MDE which will prevent 
us from moving forward. Engineering will continue to apply for 
funds and present this project at PACE until it is funded.

RLS 5/15/2019

2010 01-10-WWTP CSO Storage Facility At WWTP CSO storage and handling facility in 
accordance with LTCP

Construction UPDATE Contractor continues to backfill the storage structure 
and work on the pump house. Mechanical and electrical 
systems inside the tank are ramping up. Substantial 
completion is projected for mid-February 2020.

RLS 10/9/2019

2013 1-13-FPM Flood Control System Concrete 
Repairs

Repairs to various points of FCS system 
per USACOE inspection

Design NO CHANGE - Project is still on hold pending MDE review of 
EAP for Dry Run. A grant application was submitted for the 
project through MDE will hear results in May 2020.  
Additionally, started USACE Section 408 request for floodwall 
extensions.

MDI 10/1/2019

2013 12-13-FPM Flood Control Encroachment Tree 
Project

Removal of Trees along Flood Wall and 
Levees per requirements of US Army 
Corps of Engineers specifications (See 
also Project 2-17-FPM)

Complete UPDATE project complete KAR 12/23/2019

2014 04-14-WWTP Sludge Screening Study/Design Study to select the best alternative to 
keep rags out of the recently cleaned and 
modified digester because the 
modifications will make it impossible to 
revive rags in the future.

Design NO CHANGE Need/Benefit of the project is being reevaluated, 
and for now the project is on hold.   Design is complete and the 
project will remain on this report for the time being.

RLS 4/2/2018

2014 13-14-M Mechanic Street Access Road 
Improvement Project

Repaving and ADA ramp improvements 
to the section Mechanic Street from I-68 
to Bedford Street.  Includes 
improvements to the block of Bedford 
Street from N. Centre to N. Mechanic 
Street and Baltimore Street to the Bridge.  

Construction UPDATE Paving is substanitally complete. The contractor had 
to reconstruct several of the ADA ramps.

JRD 12/16/2019

2014 19-14-M Greene Street Complete Street Plan Planning Study for Greene Street Planning NO CHANGE - The  Design Report from Alta Planning + 
Design was submitted and presented to the Mayor and City 
Council.   The plan to start work on Construction Funding 
Applications has been delayed because of the Baltimore Street 
Project, which would have been competing for the same funds.  
This project still needs to be done and should be a priority in 
the future. 

RLS 6/1/2017

2015 9-15-M Potomac River Walk The Study Phase of this project is being 
done through the Cumberland MPO and 
consists of a Walk / Trail for pedestrians 
and bikes along the Potomac River 
between Wills Creek and the YMCA

Study NO CHANGE -This project has been turned over to Canal 
Place.  Engineering Services for Design were received.  
Recommendation from the committee was to award to CEC.

KAR 8/9/2019

                2015 18-15-S CSO Water Quality Analysis Base line data collection for analysis of 
future CSO needs after CSO Storage is 
on line.

Planning NO CHANGE Project continues. Stream sampling ongoing on 
a monthly basis pre storage and post storage. Three staff were 
certified for sampling in April.

RJK 11/4/2019

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

Page 1 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2015 19-15-M WWTP & Collection System Asset 
Management Plan

Development of an Asset Management 
Plan

Planning UPDATE   Asset Management Program/Capital Improvement 
implementation. Dashboard development and Workforce app 
beiginning to be used. Working on  Survey 123 and Collector.

RJK 11/4/2019

2015 23-15-M Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
Modernization and Implementation

Update FIRMs and the Floodplain 
Ordinance, and conduct an outreach to 
the community to apprise landowners of 
the impact of those changes.

Planning NO CHANGE - The Letter of Final Determination date is now 
October, 2018, with a projected effective date of April, 2019.

PJD 1/3/2019

2016 12-16-M Baltimore Street Access 
Improvement - Final Design

The purpose of the New Baltimore Street 
Town Center project is to reopen and 
improve Baltimore Street, which is 
currently configured as a pedestrian mall, 
to vehicular traffic while maintaining 
elements of the mall.

Design UPDATE EADS has submitted their 30% design to MDOT 
SHA for review. EADS has resumed working on the utility 
design as they wait for SHA comments of first submission. The 
next drawing submission is scheduled for late February.

RLS 10/9/2019

2016 17-16-M Stage Renovations at Liberty Street 
Stage

Replace wood stage with Concrete Design NO CHANGE - This project would be unnecessary if the 
Baltimore Street Access project is executed. The project will 
remain on this list until the Baltimore Street project moves to 
construction.

RLS 5/15/2019

2016 18-16-BR John J. McMullen, Bridge No. A-C-01 
Repairs

Bridge Repair Design UPDATE - This project is being placed on hold due to needs at 
other bridges. This project is expected to move forward in 
FY21 with State Aid Funds.

RLS 10/9/2019

2016 19-16-S 78" Parallel Pipeline from Mill Race to 
CSO

78" Pipeline to CSO tank in accordance 
with Consent Decree

Design UPDATE - NEPA work continues. WRA has provided their final 
design proposal and schedule for the project. The proposal is 
on the 10/15 M&CC agenda for approval, pending MDE 
approval.

RLS 10/9/2019

2017 2-17-FPM Flood Control Encroachment removal 
Project

The City as the Local Sponsor of the 
Flood Control Project is expected to 
maintain the easements along the Flood 
Control Project, however the area along 
Wills Creek and other areas were never 
given any comments until the Corps of 
Engineers standards changed.  
Completion of this project is necessary to 
allow the City to get a Satisfactory rating 
on its annual Flood Control Inspections.

Planning NO CHANGE - This project has been delayed because of 
other work, but must be done.  A tree removal project has 
been bid out and a contractor selected to do the work of 
removing trees in the encroachment area.

RLS 7/11/2018

2017 3-17-M Route 51 Bridge 12" Waterline 
Replacement

Replace water line on bridge as part of 
SHA Bridge Deck Project

Construction NO CHANGE -  The contract for the bridge replacement has 
been awarded but the water line is not expected to be replaced 
until FY21 due to construction phasing. 

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 8-17-M Baseline Water Quality Sampling 
Evitts Creek Water Company

Western Pennsylvania Conservancy to 
provide detailed technical and scientific 
consulting to the ECWC including: Habitat 
Characterization and Baseline Water 
Quality Sampling.

Construction NO CHANGE  Fall sampling took place 10/24. RJK 1/4/2019

2017 18-17-M Maryland Avenue Development This is not and Engineering Project, but 
included here to cover future department 
work with the development.

Design NO CHANGE- The department is supporting Cumberland 
Gateway LLC with historical records and will review stormwater 
design in the future.

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 19-17-M Recycle Coach App Smart phone app for recycling schedules Planning NO CHANGE RJK 8/9/2019

Page 2 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2017 20-17-WFP Return on Environment Plan Bedford County Comp Plan - Optional 
localized study

Study NO CHANGE RJK 8/9/2019

2017 21-17-PSB Public Safety Building Underground 
Storage Tank Removal

Heating Oil Underground Storage Tank 
(UST) - Not in use/reviewing removal 
option

Complete UPDATE Tank abandoned 10/17/2019 by TRIAD. RJK 12/23/2019

2017 24-17-S Investigation of Floodwall Underdrain 
Leak at Valley Street Bridge

Ascertain the source of the sewage that is 
leaking into the floodwall under drain 
noted at an under drain box about 90 feet 
upstream of the Valley Street Bridge, and 
develop a plan and cost estimate to effect 
repairs.

Planning NO CHANGE - No flow has been seen in manhole, waiting for 
Will's Creek water level to lower to reinspect. Leak appears to 
have been addressed by removing Burgmeier Septic. The 
underdrain pump has been removed and not odor is being 
detected. The situation will continue to be evaluated.

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 29-17-UTIL VOID See 19-15-M VOID
2017 30-17-WWTP 40 CFR 441 Compliance - Dental 

Dischargers
Collection of 1-time compliance reports 
from dental offices that remove amalgam. 

Planning UPDATE Eighteen (18) dental offices have returned their 1-
time compliance report to date.  Dental offices have until July 
2020 to comply with this new Federal regulation.

RJK 11/4/2019

2017 31-17-W Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water 
Main Replacement

Prior to designing the water main 
replacement a more detailed Water Model 
analysis of the City's system will be done 
to make sure the issues are being 
properly addressed.  Design will follow.

Design UPDATE Bennett Brewer and Associates are at 60% 
completion. The 60% documents were reviewed in December 
Contract documents are scheduled to be ready for MDE review 
in March 2020.

JRD 12/16/2019

2018 08-18-BR Cumberland Street Bridge 
Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Design UPDATE - MDOT issuesd Notice to Proceed to Jacobs/EBA 
on 10/4/19 for preliminary engineering work. A design kickoff 
meeting has been held and the consultant is working on 
organizing their subcontractors for data collection.

RLS 10/9/2019

2018 09-18-BR Baltimore Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Design UPDATE - Temporary bridge repair work is complete. WTB will 
be submitting their next report in November as they continue 
through the federal process. The Design is expected to be 
completed in Fall of 2020

RLS 10/9/2019

2018 22-18-M Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Contract documents for the FY20 garbage 
and recycling collection bid process

Planning NO CHANGE New schedule in effect!
Staff met with Burgmeier's Hauling on 9/18 for continued 
satisfactory services.  Press Release planned for getting trash 
out early and how to contact City/Burgmeiers. 

RJK 9/30/2019

2018 23-18-WWTP  FY 2019 MDE Energy Grant
Optimization of the Aeration System 
at the WRF

Application through MDE for energy 
grants for WWTP or WFPs

Construction UPDATE All work in bio-reactors 1 and 2 are complete.  
Contractors are working on the last bio-reactor as well as the 
inlet and discharge piping for blowers 1 and 2

MDI 12/16/2019

2018 24-18-M Cumberland Street Retaining Wall This project includes the installation of a 
retaining wall and the replace of the 
closed portion of sidewalk along 
Cumberland Street at Market Street. Also 
included is the installion of ADA compliant 
curb/sidewalk ramps.

Construction UPDATE Work has been delayed due to the poor subgrade 
condition at the site of the proposed wall, and a delay in the 
delivery of the precast concrete drainage structures.

JRD 12/16/2019

2018 25-18-BR SHA Project: Replacement of MD 51 
Bridge Deck

Replace the water line under the industrial 
blvd bridge under a MDOT bridge 
rehabilitation project

Construction Refer to project 3-17-W RLS 10/11/2018

2018 26-18-M Ridgeley Levee System Certification

Page 3 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2018 29-18-W Smouses Mill Pumping Station 
Upgrades

Replace existing pumps and VFD's, install 
a back-up generator, remove hydro-
pneumatic tanks

Construction UPDATE - C&T has demoed existing tanks and is planning 
pipe install while awaiting new pump system to arrive (Xmas).  
Generator and new fencing has been installed.

MDI 12/16/2019

2018 30-18-SWM WMHS Crisis Resource Center Project involving SWM review  Replaces 
an existing building with a new facility.

Design NO CHANGE - Pre-construction meeting was held on 9/23.  
Belt has demoed existing structure and will be working on this 
project for next 6 months. City only assisting with SWM.

MDI 11/4/2019

2018 31-18-WFP Pine Ridge Water & PUC Rate 
Issues

2018 32-18-FPM Rehabilitation Assistance for Flood 
Damages to Flood Risk Management 
Projects

Request USACE to make repairs or 
provide funding to address flood control 
issues

NO CHANGE - The USACE has denied financial support due 
to the flood control being in an unacceptable condition. The 
City is looking to enter the SWIF program to receive aid to get 
financial support for construction.

RLS 10/12/2018

2018 33-18-RE Constitution Park Marble Courts Installation of marble courts, adjoining 
pavilion, and upgrades to nearby comfort 
station in Constitution Park

Construction Bidding UPDATE - Contract Documents for Phase II will be completed 
by mid-December, bid opeing is anticipated by mid-January. 
Phase II includes a concrete slab around 2 of the Marble 
courts to make them ADA compliant, an ADA compliant walk to 
the slab, and renovations of the restrooms in Grove 4.

JRD 12/16/2019

2018 37-18-SWM Columbia Gas Line - Walnut Street
2018 38-18-BR Lake Gordon Road Bridge 

Replacement
PennDOT project Construction NO CHANGE - Project has been award and notice to proceed 

issued. Construction slated for June-October. Not a City 
Project.

RLS 5/15/2019

2018 40-18-WWTP Dry Run Detention Dam and Culvert 
Emergency Action Plan

Engineering Services to perform Dam 
Breach Analysis for EAP Execution

Study NO CHANGE - Breach analysis is complete and awaiting 
approval from MDE before submitting the full EAP to MDE.

RLS 8/5/2019

2018 43-18-BR Fayette Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Complete NO CHANGE - Studies have been returned and submitted to 
CSX negotations.

RLS 8/5/2019

2018 44-18-BR Washington Street Bridge 
Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Complete NO CHANGE - Studies have been returned and submitted to 
CSX negotations.

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 5-19-M Virginia Ave Lot Demolition Remove two structures and retaining 
walls at 6, 8 and 10 Virginia Ave.

Complete NO CHANGE - The grading plan has been approved by ASCD 
and the project has been turned over to Code Enforcement for 
demolition

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 7-19-WFP Filter Building Pilot Study Perform a study to evaluate the potential 
to replace current filter building with a new 
membrane/GAC building in the future. 
The City is required to perform a pilot 
study to validate the technology we are 
proposing to use.

Study NO CHANGE - The permit to perform the study has been 
submitted to PADEP. Awaiting approval before starting the 
study.

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 8-19-WFP New Inlet Screens for Gate House Design UPDATE Public Water Supply Minor Permit Amendment 
application submitted to the PA DEP 7/26/19.  Awaiting 
approval. Detailed specifications have been inserted into the 
City's specification package (awiting project information to 
complete the specfications (contract durations, etc.)

JRD 11/5/2019

2019 10-19-M Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the residential 
properties within the City Limits which 
include blighted properties and recent 
demos. 

Construction UPDATE- Contract underway KAR 11/4/2019

Page 4 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2019 11-19-M Non Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the Commercial and 
Public Owned Properties within the City 
Limits.  To include water tanks, City Hall, 
Public Safety and several others.

Construction UPDATE-Contract Underway KAR 11/4/2019

2019 13-19-M Center City Parking Garage 
Improvements

Various improvements to the Center City 
Parking Garage including ADA 
improvements, wayfinding and signage 
upgrades, and painting

Construction UPDATE - Kiosks and gates have been ordered and received, 
installation is in progress. Security cameras are still in 
progress, MIS is working out specifications. DDC/Arts Council 
received their signage, it will be installed by the Street Dept. 

JAT 12/16/2019

2019 14-19-M WWTP RMP Compliance Services RMP Compliance for OSHA 29 CFR 1910 Planning UPDATE RMP program updated to comply with OSHA 29 CFR 
1910 for chlorine and sulfer dioxide storage on site.  New 
(RED) Binder at WWTP and my office.  

Training and LEPC coordination still needs completed. 

RJK 11/4/2019

2019 18-19-M Nemacolin Avenue Survey Survey of Nemacolin Avenue between 
Longwood Avenue and Richwood Avenue

Planning UPDATE The final Plat and CAD draings have been recieved 
by the City.

JRD 11/5/2019

2019 27-19-M Bellevue Street Sidewalk Upgrades Removal and installation of new concrete 
sidewalks from Baltimore Ave to Fulton 
St.  This will include the installation of 
ADA Accessible ramps.

Construction UPDATE- Award was made to Excavating Assoicates.  Notice 
to Proceed was issuded .

KAR 12/23/2019

2019 32-19-M Brownfields Application 2019 Information Regarding Brownfields and 
potential projects within the city.

Study UPDATE-Staff attended Brownfields Boot-Camp held by MDP 
9/24 

MEA 9/30/2018

2019 35-19-WWTP Denite Filters Mudwell Mixing System This project will evaluate and design a 
system for the mudwell tanks at the ENR 
to maintain solid suspense, prior to 
pumping the filtrate back to the head of 
the treatment plant.

Design UPDATE- Design bid was awarded to GD&F on 10/11/19.  
Kickoff meeting was held at WWTP on 10/15/19.  Design 
progress meeting was held on 11/19/19.  GD&F working on 
finalizing design options.

MDI 12/16/2019

2019 38-19-BR Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs Phase 3 Third phase of repairs, following 28-18-
BR and 17-18-BR. Elevated sidewalk 
slabs need to be replaced.

Planning UPDATE- Project is out for bid.  Bids due on 12/17/19. MDI 12/16/2019

Page 5 of 5
12/23/2019



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Maintenance Division monthly report for December, 2019 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION REPORT  

December 2019 

 
 

Street Maintenance Report 

 

Parks & Recreation Maintenance Report 

 

Fleet Maintenance Report 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

PUBLIC WORKS/MAINTENANCE 
STREET BRANCH 

MONTHLY REPORT 
DECEMBER 2019 

 
 POTHOLES AND COMPLAINTS 

• Potholed 14 streets using 7 tons of hot mix asphalt 
• Potholed 6 streets using 4 tons of cold patch 

 
 UTILITY HOLES 

• Repaired 4 water utility holes using existing bricks 
 

 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS/STREET NAME SIGNS 
• Installed 2 Handicap Parking signs/painted curbs blue 
• Removed 1 Handicap Parking sign/painted curb black 
• Installed 26 traffic control signs 
• Installed 3 street name signs 

 
 STREET SWEEPING 

• 207 miles  
• 16 loads 

 
 LEAF PICK-UP 

• 11 Loads 
 

 MISCELLANOUS 
• Completed 27 Work Orders 
• Set up traffic control, No Parking signs for multiple events 
• Worked OT for New Year’s Eve Celebration 
• Worked OT to remove downed traffic lights on S Mechanic St 
• Cleaned Underpass, McMullen Bridge, Washington St Bridge, Fayette St 

Bridge, Cumberland St Bridge & Welch Ave. drainage ditch 4 times.  
• Picked up 7 dead animals 
• Filled salt barrels 5 days 
• Picked up trash/discarded items on 3 occasions 
• Cleaned Municipal Center shop once 
• Received shipments of road salt 

 



 

STREET MAINTENANCE - DECEMBER 2019 
Dec.  
2-6 

Dec.     
9-13 

Dec.    
16-20 

Dec.     
23-27 

Dec.    
30-31 TOTAL 

SERVICE REQUEST COMPLETED    4 14 0 3 6 27 

PAVING PERFORMED TONS           0 

CONCRETE WORK CY           0 

UTILITY HOLES REPAIRED  

WATER           0 

SEWER           0 

CY           0 

TONS           0 

POTHOLES FILLED 

STREETS 2 12     6 20 

ALLEYS           0 

DAYS 1 2     2 5 

Cold Mix         4t 4t 

TONS 2t 5t       7t 

PERMANENT PATCH 
CY           0 

TONS           0 

COMPLAINTS COMPLETED 

            0 

CY           0 

TONS           0 

TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED   10   8 7 1 26 

STREET NAME SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED   1   2     3 

HANDICAPPED SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED/REMOVED 

            0 

  1   1     2 

  1         1 

PAINTING PERFORMED 

BLUE 3   1     4 

YELLOW           0 

RED     1     1 

PAVEMENT MARKINGS INSTALLED No.           0 

STREET CLEANING 
LOADS 13 0 0 0 3 16 

Miles 140 0 0 0 67 207 

SWEEPER DUMPS HAULED TO LANDFILL TONS   10.9t   1.2t   12.1t 

SALT BARRELLS  - PICK UP, FILL DAYS     4 1   5 

CLEANED BALTIMORE ST. UNDERPASS Days 1 1 1 1   4 

CLEAN SNOW EQUIPMENT Days    1 2     3 

BRUSH REMOVAL/TREE WORK Areas 1 4       5 

Check Drains/Clean Debris DAYS   2 1 1   4 

LEAF PICK UP Loads 6 2 0 3 0 11 
  

Set up traffic control, no parking signs for multiple events 

Picked up trash/discarded furniture on 3 different occasions 

Worked OT for New Year's Eve Celebration 

Worked OT to remove downed traffic lights on S Mechanic St 

Picked up 7 dead animals 

Cleaned Municipal Center shop once 

Received shipments of road salt 

  



 
 
 

 
 

PUBLIC WORKS/MAINTENANCE 
 PARKS & RECREATION 

MONTHLY REPORT 
DECEMBER 2019 

 

 
 

 Constitution Park  

o Cleaned up garbage 2 times a week 

o Cut and cleared trees 

o Cleared brush & weeds from fence lines  

 

 Mason’s Complex 

o Cleaned up garbage once a week 

o Cleared brush & weeds from fence lines 

 

 Jaycee Field 

o Cleaned up garbage once a week 

o Cleared brush & weeds from fence lines 

 

 Miscellaneous Work  

o Performed basic housekeeping @ Municipal Building 

o Cleaned the Craft House & Activities Building 

o Prepared feed & bedding for ducks & geese @ the Duck Pond 

o Cleaned & performed preventative maintenance on Park & Rec vehicles 

o Picked up trash @ parklets & playgrounds once a week 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Fleet Maintenance 

December 2019 

  

  Total Fleet Maintenance Projects 159                         

    Central Services 3 

    Code Enforcement 6 

    DDC 0 

   Engineering 8 

   Fire 6 

   Flood 0 

    Municipal Parking 0 

    P & R Maintenance 5 

   Police 17 

   Public Works 0 

   Sewer 12 

   Snow Removal 26 

   Street Maintenance 37 

   Vehicle Maintenance  11 

   Water Distribution 11 

   Water Filtration 0 

   WWTP 0 

    Scheduled Preventive Maintenance 16 

    Field Service Calls 1 

  

  Total Work Orders Submitted 39 

  

  Risk Management Claims 0 

  

  Fork Lift Inspections 0 

      



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Fire Department monthly report for December, 2019 

  











Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Police Department monthly report for December, 2019 

  









Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Utilities - Treatment Plants monthly report for November 2019 

  



TREATMENT PLANTS

MONTHLY UTILITY REPORT

NOVEMBER 2079

AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION - WFP

AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION . WRF

(o1t

PAST 72 MONTHS

BRIEF LIST of EVENTS

1.OO% COMPLIANCE WITH ALL FEDERAL & STATE REGULATIONS

NEW COMPUTER MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ,,eMAINT,, IMPLEMENTATION AT BOTH TREATMENT FACILITIES

WS$} SMOUSSE MILL PUMPING STATION BEING UPGRADED WITH NEW PUMPS, GENERATOR, PRESSURE TANK

ttrF$) DEVELOPED PLAN FOR PHASE 2 DISTRTBUTED CONTROL SYSTEM UPGRADE

DEVELOPED PLAN FOR DISSOLVED AIR FLOTATION SKIMMER UPGRADES

MET WITH GDF ENGINEERS TO EVALUATE MUDWELL MIXING

WORKING WITH MARSHALL RUBY TO REPAIR ROTATING SCREENS AT EVITTS CREEK LIFT STATION

PLANT ELECTRICIANS RECALIBRATED AND REPROGRAMMED ALL COMBINED SEWER OVERFLOW SITES

tt

=o
rl
rl

(t
ao{{
E

=o{
r,l

t
eo{:i
E

o
H
o')
t\
H

q6($9

PAST 72 MONTHS



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Utilities Division-Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for December, 2019 

  











Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Approval of the Executive Session and Work Session Minutes of October 8, 2019, the Work 

Session and Special Public Meeting Minutes of October 22, 2019, and the Executive, Regular and 

Work Session Minutes of November 5, 2019 

  





1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Tuesday, October 8, 2019 

4:30 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Seth Bernard, Richard Cioni, 

Eugene Frazier, and Laurie Marchini.    

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey D. Rhodes, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 

Woodring, City Clerk; Paul Kelly, Executive Director-CEDC; Matt Miller, Economic Development 

Specialist 

 

I. HOUSING STUDY UPDATE 

   Mr. Kelly advised that the American Planning Association for MD had held a conference 

 at Rocky Gap recently and gave some background on the organization. He stated that 

 the CEDC hosted an event for them at their request, and had Destination by Design give 

 a presentation with a walking tour which was attended by  25-30 planners, 

 administrators, etc.   He added that the event got very positive feedback and was well-

 received, with Mr. Kelly and Mr. Miller attending sessions at the conference as well, 

 He said that it appears city is ahead of the curve in terms of revitalization. 

 

 Mr. Kelly then advised on the housing study and the CEDC’s most recent board 

 meeting, and added they acquired authorization to hire LSA (Linda Sturdavant and 

 Associates, LLC), with the cost of the study being $43,886.  He stated that the goal was to 

 have an action plan and said he could provide the proposal if needed.  He advised that 

 they spoke with others but the board decided to hire LSA.  Mr. Kelly explained the list of 

 recommendations that LSA provided - right-size housing market, second story 

 redevelopment, single-family/single story, specific neighborhoods, etc.  Mr. Kelly 

 advised that the recommendation process could take several months from when LSA is 

 formally hired. 

 

II. BALTIMORE STREET ACCESS PROJECT FUNDING UPDATE 

 

 Mr. Kelly could not provide an update on the funding for this project, but advised that a 

 letter is expected from downstate that he hopes will be good news and asked to reserve 

 comment until he receives it.  Mr. Kelly did, however, advise on the timeline and stated 

 that EADS had submitted the 30% drawings last week.  He also advised that the SHA 

 has performed their TAP analysis to determine what money can be expected, with the 

 next step being to apply the ARC funding. 

 



2 
 

 There was discussion on how businesses can thrive during construction, with Mr. Kelly 

 stating that the topic does always come up at the DDC meetings, and is a point of 

 emphasis for the CEDC as well as the DDC.    He advised that there is no specific game 

 plan yet as they need to look at the construction timeline. 

 

III. INTERSTATE I-68 REGIONAL ALLIANCE UPDATE 

 

 Mr. Kelly provided background on the I-68 Regional Alliance and stated the CEDC and 

 the usual Economic Development folks participate in this, as well as representatives 

 from five different counties.  He advised that the idea is to eventually have a county-

 wide entity for each county, with a group coordinated in regional development above 

 that, and gave examples of how the coordination would work with each county.  He 

 added that the key would be to make sure everyone’s goals are comparable.  He 

 advised, though, that this is all academic at this point, and they are still deciding 

 specifics of governance about this entity.  He added that this effort is spearheaded by Al 

 Delia of FSU, asked if the M&CC was in favor of it, and no objection was presented. 

 

IV. CITY/COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONSOLIDATION 

 

 Mr. Kelly advised that the CEDC and corporate counsel Mike Getty met with the 

 County Commissioners, County Administrator and County counsel in closed session, 

 with the CEDC board having already voted to consider the CEDC serving as economic 

 development for the County.  He stated that they walked away from that meeting with 

 the impression that the County wanted the same, so they are in negotiations.  He 

 advised that there is no draft contract in place at this time, no agreement for terms, and 

 it’s all open for discussion.  He said he will keep staff up-to-date.   

 

 There was discussion on if the proposal would involve relocation and where the home 

 base would be.  Concerns were also brought up regarding making sure Cumberland is 

 well-represented, with a Memo of Understanding with the City being suggested by Mr. 

 Cohen.  

 

V. 400 N. MECHANIC STREET UTILIZATION UPDATE 

 

 Mr. Kelly provided background and specs on the former Canada Hose House.  He 

 advised that Mr. Miller has spoken with multiple people over the last year wanting to 

 start or relocate a business, and the CEDC tries to find them a place downtown or in the 

 surrounding areas.  He stated that they proposed to the board to use 400 N. Mechanic St. 

 as an incubator, to help those folks who cannot find a facility to fit their immediate 

 needs.  Mr. Kelly explained the various ways of incentivizing incubator space, and 

 wants the City to consider transferring the premises to the CEDC when they begin their 

 first incubator lease, saying the CEDC would procure insurance for the building.  If the 

 tenant wants to stay there, the CEDC would consider selling to them.  Mr. Kelly advised 



3 
 

 there would be full disclosure to the M&CC.  Mr. Cohen suggested leasing the building 

 to the CEDC, with the CEDC subleasing to tenants, which would give the City more 

 direct control over the disbursement of the property.  Mr. Kelly stated he was fine with 

 that and they could certainly talk about and negotiate it.    

 

 There was discussion on the best way to vet a tenant, and if the CEDC, their board, or 

 the M&CC decides.  Mayor Morriss and Mr. Rhodes agreed it was a conceptually good 

 idea.  Mr. Kelly advised that they have honed-in on one entity they have in mind that 

 wants to get into the building yesterday.  Mr. Cohen stated that as far as vetting, the 

 M&CC don’t need to micromanage, with Council seeming to agree.  Mr. Rhodes stated 

 they probably need to look at capitalization of companies as far as vetting. 

 

 The basic concept and timeline of lease/sublease was discussed, with Mr. Cohen stating 

 they don’t need too many details - it can be moved along, and Mayor Morriss saying 

 specifics can be worked out in the initial agreement.   

 

VI. UNION RESCUE MISSION 

 

 Mr. Kelly provided information he received from his recent visit to the mission, and after 

 speaking with Pastor Ziler.  He stated that the mission wants to expand their services, 

 specifically regarding women and children’s sheltering.  He advised about the mission’s 

 difficulties because of where they are located, their proximity to the tracks, and their lack of 

 room.  Mr. Kelly said it seems to be an opportunity for them to relocate, with the CEDC 

 partnering with them, and to also look at the repurposing of that area, given what is going to 

 be done with Baltimore Street and the Maryland Avenue corridor.  Mr. Kelly stated that he 

 went out of his way to make sure that the mission knows that the City understands that they 

 provide a very valuable service, and in no way is this to be thought of as the CEDC wanting 

 them out of the area. 

 

 Mr. Kelly advised, however, that that block area is part of, and was incorporated into, the 

 aspirational plan, it being close to the AMTRAK station, with a potential repurposing of the 

 area as a transportation stop, at least on a small scale, for now.  He added there is a County 

 study pending on whether or not transportation service would be better located at Canal 

 Place. 

 

 Mr. Kelly advised that after speaking with the CEDC board today, they wholeheartedly 

 want to partner with the URM to help find them a new location, with possible 

 relocation areas being the Methodist Church, or Columbia St.  He also advised that the 

 URM’s board had also met and agreed to look into relocating.  Mr. Kelly added there is no 

 doubt that relocation will be complex because of the mission’s needs and what they do, but it 

 will be worthwhile.  He stated that he is asking the M&CC for input and a decision as to 

 whether they support the idea of partnering with the CEDC and the URM, and if they would 

 like to see this become one of the CEDC’s projects.   



4 
 

 Mr. Cohen asked the M&CC to table any discussion until he’s had the opportunity to brief 

 them, with Mayor Morriss agreeing, and adding that it was good to note that the URM were 

 looking to relocate themselves, with no prompt from the CEDC.  Mr. Cohen added that the 

 URM has other alternatives, or backups, that the M&CC should know about as well, and he 

 wants to discuss those before any commitments are made. 

 

 Mr. Kelly discussed the Brunswick property, in conjunction with the relocation discussion of 

 the URM, as it is adjacent to the mission.  He stated that as the Brunswick is up for 

 foreclosure sale, it can affect what the CEDC does in regards to the mission, and noted that 

 zoning needs to be addressed. He also stated that if no options are available to the mission, 

 Pastor Ziler has indicated that they will do their best where they’re at.  Mr. Kelly stated that 

 M&CC and staff will have to decide what they ultimately want to see happen over the 

 next 5-10 years, and whether they want to direct the CEDC to make it happen. 

 

 Mr. Cohen provided details on the Brunswick property regarding ownership, foreclosure, 

 tax liens, title, etc., and discussed with M&CC.  He advised that with foreclosure sale all liens 

 against the property would be stripped, and added that the bank held the mortgage and 

 assigned it to the City, so the City holds the title to the mortgage.   

 

 Mr. Kelly stated that now may be a good time, in partnering with the URM, to take a pulse 

 of what we do in terms of resources for the URM, and who it helps out.  He added that 

 Pastor Ziler had indicated it might be nice to figure out who helps out in this realm and 

 whether services are coordinated, and if there are any gaps.  He also asked about how to   

 help out certain demographics. 

 

 Mr. Rhodes advised that the City had to take emergency demo action on the Brunswick 

 property because of structural safety issues, which cost approximately $80K.  Mr. Cohen 

 stated that the City’s interest lies in being able to transfer the property to someone who will 

 improve or utilize it in a way to foster  investment and return it to the tax rolls.  He also 

 advised that the URM would like to buy the property, but they have a price in mind that 

 they won’t exceed. He added that the City and the URM are probably the only two entities 

 that have an interest in the property, other than the CEDC.   

 

 Council seemed to agree that it would be in the best interest of the City to acquire the 

 property considering what it has going on in the area.  Council discussed the debts owed on 

 the property and costs related to acquiring it, and agreed to talk more extensively about it in 

 Executive Session. 

 

VII. ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION 

 

 At approximately 5:15 p.m., the meeting adjourned into Closed Session pursuant to Section 

 3-305 (b) (4) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland to discuss 

 proposals for the development of the East Side School Site and proposals for the relocation of 

 various businesses in the City. 

 



5 
 

VIII. RECONVENE INTO PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

 

At 6:00 p.m. the meeting was reconvened into Public Work Session 

 

PRESENT:  Mayor and Council, except for Council Member Richard Cioni, who was absent for this 

portion of the Work Session. 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jeff Rhodes, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 

Woodring, City Clerk; Leslie Willing, Twigg Realty Property Manager; and Jose Taylor, Western MD 

Property Management 

 

IX. LOCAL PROPERTY MANAGERS DISCUSSION – VARIOUS HOUSING ISSUES 

 

 Leslie Willing, Property Manager for Twigg Realty advised that she had asked for this 

 meeting and had spoken with council members before.  Also attending with Ms. Willing was 

 José Taylor, owner of Western MD Property Management, and several local property 

 owners.  

 

 Multiple topics were discussed, which included: 

 

 Making sure tenants are responsible for paying their own water bills so property 

owners don’t have to be responsible when tenants can’t or won’t pay. 

 Waivers/Adjustments – once every two years – even on multi-unit buildings; 

property owners should not have to ask for adjustments on tenants’ behalf. 

 Tagging shut-off notices stopped once the City went to monthly billing, with the 

notice now being on the bill. 

 Water leaks in multiple units with one meter – how to charge. 

 Suggestion from managers for City to collect security deposit to reduce risk to 

property owners. 

 Suggestion from M&CC to raise rents to cover the cost, as a solution. 

 Water service policies of Fort Ashby – look into. 

 City will not take the business risk from property owners. 

 Follow up on City’s own 45-day cut-off policies – work to enforce to reduce high 

water bills; set priority for rental units to shut off on 46th day of delinquent bill. 

 Look into notification of fees for tenant meter tampering.  

 Look into system capability of electronic copies of bills in order to monitor 

tenants. 

 Discussion on some of the current clientele (prison inmate relatives/drug 

dealers), different environment now; how to rent to people that Cumberland 

wants. 

 Low rent housing issues; HUD vouchers; upgrade properties to attract a better 

demographic. 

 See if system is capable of generating copies of water bills for property 

owners/managers, so owners can take action before enormous bills occur. 



6 
 

 Turn water back on with an outstanding bill so property can be rented again, and 

work out a payment plan. 

 

At closing, there was discussion about regular landlord meetings and how best to share 

information and updates to topics going forward and to have a City Hall representative attend 

landlord meetings to help with electronic bill lookup. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Minutes approved ___________________________ 

 

 



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Special Public Meeting 

City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

DATE:    October 22, 2019 

 

 

I. 4:30 p.m. – Convene in Open Session 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call 

 PRESENT 

 Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 Councilman Seth Bernard 

 Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 

 Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 

 Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

 

 ALSO PRESENT: Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor, Police 

 Captain Chuck Ternent 

IV. New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

  Mayor Morriss reviewed the one item on the Consent Agenda, and called for questions or 

  comments.  Being none, motion to approve Order No. 26,550 was made by   

  Councilwoman Marchini, seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of  

  5-0. 

 Order 26,550 - lifting the provisions of Section 11-113 of the City Code, entitled "Open 

Containers of Alcohol," in certain areas of the downtown beginning at 3:00 p.m. on 

October 26, 2109 and continuing through 2:00 a.m. on October 27, 2019, to 

accommodate the DDC sponsored Ghouley Pub Crawl 

V. Adjournment  

With no further business at hand, Mayor Morriss adjourned the meeting at 4:38 p.m. 



 

 Minutes approved on _______________________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor _________________________________ 

 

 ATTEST: Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk ___________________________________ 



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Tuesday, October 22, 2019 

4:38 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Seth Bernard, Richard Cioni, 

Eugene Frazier, and Laurie Marchini.    

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Police Captain 

Chuck Ternent; Paul Kelly, Executive Director-CEDC; Matt Miller, Economic Development 

Specialist 

 

I. LOITERING 

 

 Mayor Morriss discussed the reasons for the Work Session, mentioning the downtown issues of 

code enforcement, loitering, people’s behavior, and the City looking for ways to make the 

downtown safe and family friendly.  He stated some issues have started to get worse lately, adding 

that a lot of the people downtown are disenfranchised, and the City is trying to figure out ways to 

get them the help they need, while acknowledging that people have certain rights and the City 

needs to be cognizant of that.  He asked for comments from the people attending the Work Session 

regarding solutions for making the downtown safer, as well as ways to make the downtown 

businesses successful.  Mayor Morriss then opened the floor to Council, who were all in agreement 

to let Captain Ternent speak first.   

 

Captain Ternent stated that the CPD also shares the M&CC’s concerns, saying that the problem 

comes and goes, sometimes getting worse, sometimes getting better.  He advised on facts about the 

downtown homeless population, which is currently about 25 regular people, with 10-12 of the 

people being downtown since the beginning.  He spoke about the downtown civilian patrols, the 

foot and bicycle patrols, and said they have written both municipal and criminal citations, with 68 

alcohol citations written during the last year.  He stated that though they are cited and fined, the 

indigent people downtown usually get out of court due to their lack of money.  Captain Ternent 

added that with the activities of pan-handling and soliciting, the CPD needs witnesses, saying that 

although panhandling are not against the law, aggressive panhandling is and the CPD can take 

action, but needs witnesses to help at court.  He stated that they cannot take action from anonymous 

callers.  He also stated that the CPD cannot take action on the way people look, and that they have to 

be careful in discriminating against the poor or homeless.  He did add, however, that the CPD has 

zero tolerance for alcohol consumption downtown. 

 

Captain Ternent spoke about the CPD and social services teaming together to try to get some of the 

people help and get them off the street, and using referral services, but added that doesn’t always 

work because you can’t force people to get help.  He spoke about the main areas where the CPD 



2 
 

knows the regulars, downtown and Canal Place, and said the police department does go undercover 

to try to pick up some of the people dealing in solicitation or prostitution. 

 

The Captain spoke about the CPD’s taxing work load, the shortage of police officers across the entire 

country, and said the CPD is still trying to get up to speed.  He mentioned officers being assigned to 

special events, and stated that they do require officers assigned to the downtown to get out and 

walk the area.  Captain Ternent mentioned looking into getting the non-working surveillance 

cameras downtown working again, and said at peak there were 38 cameras around the City, but few 

work these days.  He stated that he would support getting the cameras fixed, especially downtown, 

and said that even though they can’t be monitored 24/7, as word gets around it would help deter 

criminal activity. 

 

II. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS 

 

Ryan Brenneman spoke about the availability of crowd-source cameras that can tap into Nest, a law 

enforcement resource, where downtown businesses acquire cameras for their storefronts and work 

together with the CPD.  He added that officers would be able to pull the information up on their cell 

phones.  There was discussion on if downtown businesses would be able to get a grant to buy high-

quality Nest cameras in bulk, and the possibility of downtown design money being available. 

 

John Buchanan, commercial insurance agent and responsible for CBIZ properties on Baltimore 

Street, advised that they recently installed cameras and worked with the CPD when they had a 

break in.  He stated that their camera system is first-class, is set-up to a 180 degree view, and said 

they would share information from their IT Department with the City.  Mr. Buchanan also discussed 

his employees concerns with the parklet at the end of the mall by Mechanic Street, and spoke about 

the plan to remove it, saying they’ve had a history of problems there – open containers, trash, 

clothing left there - and said his employees are scared about what’s going on downtown.  He also 

stated that the management at CBIZ is opposed to putting in bathrooms once the parklet is removed, 

saying that it will be a nuisance, and will continue to attract the disenfranchised.  Mayor Morriss 

advised that there has not been a final decision yet on bathrooms. 

 

Larry Jackson spoke about the area of Baltimore Street where his businesses are, saying that it’s like 

ground zero, and has gotten really rough.  He stated there are fights often and they have had to 

remove people from the music store 3 days in a row.  He added that he doesn’t want to make this a 

“poor” problem or mental health problem, saying that a lot of it is behavior problems.  He stated 

that the language used creates a menacing, intimidating situation for customers, more so than 

panhandling.  Mr. Jackson mentioned some ideas to Mr. Cohen and Mayor Morriss regarding 

leasing benches or planters to businesses to create private property.  The Mayor said he would look 

into it.  Mr. Jackson also spoke on the issue of ticketing tourists on bikes on the mall, and mentioned 

that parking needed to be free everywhere. 

 

Gail Hall, owner of Mountainside Bike Tours and The Inn on Decatur talked about tourists being a 

captive market, with bikers coming off the trail with no place to go.  She mentioned she has been 

sold out every night this past summer, and her customers are spending a lot of money downtown.  

She said that lately, though, she’s getting a lot of questions about safety.  She added that she no 



3 
 

longer lets her guests walk at night – she picks them up.  Ms. Hall stated that though Decatur Street 

has gotten better, there’s so much going down on the mall coming through to her street that it’s 

embarrassing.  Mayor Morriss agreed and said the extended area from the mall needs to be made 

safe as well, and understands what tourism brings to the community.  

 

Ryan Brenneman, owner of Allegany Media in the Lila Building, talked about the frequent shouting 

behavior on the mall, and stated that he has to go down and ask people to be quiet, because he is 

recording.  He said if Code Enforcement is not taking action, then we need to rethink what code 

enforcement is.  He stated that we need to think outside the box.  He also agreed that parking fees 

need to be abolished.  He added that we need ambassadors in the City more than code enforcement.  

Mayor Morriss said they will evaluate how code enforcement is being handled, and will discuss the 

parking aspect.  Mr. Buchanan and Ms. Saville discussed code enforcement as well and agreed with 

playing up the ambassador aspect and having the officers dress more like that, and mentioned the 

problem of code enforcement being cut off in the afternoon. 

 

A smoking ban for the downtown area was discussed, with Mayor Morriss advising that he has 

heard a lot about property owners downtown being in favor of it, although it would be difficult to 

enforce.  Mr. Cohen advised that smoking is not allowed in parklets downtown at any time. 

 

There was discussion regarding the overgrown trees on the mall, keeping the lights in the trees, the 

benches on the mall being taken out although the farmer’s market is requesting to keep them for 

their patrons, and loitering being prohibited at Rose’s. 

 

There was more discussion on a possible smoking ban, with Mr. Cohen advising that the DDC has 

the ability to pass its own rules and regulations.  He added that it would help if they would adopt 

their own smoking ban and post it so that code enforcement can help enforce it.  Mr. Cohen also 

spoke on the futility of bringing homeless folks into court, saying that officers can in fact keep taking 

away their addictions, whether it’s drugs or alcohol, which can be a deterrent to returning to the 

area.  Mr. Cohen also advised that when it comes to enforcing laws, police are reactionary.  He 

stated that it’s incumbent upon business and property owners to call the police when groups are 

congregating in front of businesses.  Mr. Cohen advised on the smoking ban at all parks and parklets 

in the City, and the hours they are closed.  He added that to be proactive, when you see people 

committing crimes, to step up and call, charge them, and be willing to come to court.   

 

There was discussion on creating a long term plan to get people the help they need, and utilizing 

them for community service in lieu of taking them to court and fining them when they have no 

ability to pay. 

 

Paul Kelly, CEDC Director, stated that there is a perceived issue downtown in terms of peoples’ 

behavior and not being a warm and inviting place.  He stated that in some instances it’s true, and the 

City needs to reverse that perception considering all the resources that are invested into 

redevelopment.  He suggested that the City’s marketing services have a survey taken of visitors 

from metropolitan areas, in terms of their perceived level of safety and feeling of welcome from the 

City, and have the same survey for local folks to see the different areas of concern.  Mr. Kelly also 

suggested gauging the City’s local health resources to figure out who all the players are, to see if 



4 
 

they are communicating, and if they have the resources to help the City with those folks that have 

slipped through the system, to those that just have no respect.  He stated that the CEDC has heard 

unanimously that people want an officer downtown – that just the appearance of an officer would 

deter most, if not all.  He added that the CEDC supports the City’s redevelopment efforts downtown 

and moving the Union Rescue Mission to give them a bigger opportunity to expand their services.  

He asked to please consider appointing or designating someone, perhaps a member of staff or an 

entity in the community, to own this issue and make it their problem, to attend meetings to talk 

about solutions, and not get sidetracked. 

 

Mayor Morriss agreed that the City needs an action plan, and stated that a lot of good ideas were 

mentioned this day.  Council thanked everyone for coming to the meeting and sharing their 

thoughts and concerns, agreed they need to work together to find answers, and said if the police 

need resources it’s the M&CC’s job to help find a way to make that happen.  Captain Ternent stated 

that more manpower would be great, and the Police Dept. intends to put a permanent officer 

downtown someday, when they get back to full staffing, but it won’t happen overnight.  He added 

that they are putting together a better recruitment and retention plan – get officers, keep officers.  He 

stated that he will try to put an officer downtown whenever possible, and mentioned to everyone 

again that if they see violations, please call them.  He also mentioned that he will look into the 

camera project. 

 

III. ADJOURNMENT 

 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Minutes approved ___________________________ 

 

 



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Regular Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers, 57 N. Liberty Street 

 

DATE:    November 05, 2019 

 

 

I. CLOSED SESSION  

1. 5:15 p.m. - Convene in open session for the purpose of closing the meeting for an executive 

session pursuant to Section 3-305(b)(1) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code 

of Maryland to discuss board, commission, and committee appointments 

  Motion to move into Closed Session was made by Councilman Frazier, seconded by 

 Councilman Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

2. Executive session 

II. OPEN SESSION 

1. 6:15 p.m. - Reconvene into Open Session 

  Mayor Morriss reconvened the meeting in Open Session at 6:15 p.m. 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Roll Call 

 PRESENT 

 Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 Councilman Richard Cioni 

 Councilman Eugene Frazier 

 Councilwoman Laurie Marchini 

 Councilman Seth Bernard was absent 

 

 ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Rhodes, City Administrator; Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 

 Woodring, City Clerk; Captain Chuck Ternent, Interim Chief of Police; Donald Dunn, Fire Chief 

 

 



V. Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary Statement of executive session held November 5, 2019 

 

 Mayor Morriss announced that a Closed Meeting had been held on November 5, 2019 at 

 5:15 p.m. and read into the record a summary of that session, which is attached hereto 

 and made a part of these minutes as required under Section 3-306 (c) (2) of the General 

 Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

VI. Director's Reports 

(A) Utilities - Treatment Plants 

Utilities Division - Treatment Plants monthly report for September, 2019 

(B) Utilities - Flood, Water, Sewer 

Central Services monthly report for September, 2019 

 Motion to approve the reports was made by Councilman Frazier, seconded by 

Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

VII. Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Closed Session Minutes of August 13, 2019, the Regular and Work Session 

Minutes of August 20, and the Regular Session Minutes of September 3, 2019 

 

  Motion to approve the minutes was made by Councilwoman Marchini, seconded by 

Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

VIII. New Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3861 (1st reading) - to enact Article V of Chapter 15 of the Code to set forth 

protocols and procedures relative to parades and special events   

   Mr. Cohen reviewed the proposed Ordinance which would cover parades, races,  

   processions, etc., and special events which would cover gatherings of 50 or more  

   people,  events with food, beverages and temporary structures on City property,  

   and sets forth a uniform set of requirements.  Excluded are events organized by  

   the DDC, as they have their own set of rules and regulations. 

   FIRST READING:  The Ordinance was presented in title only for its First  

   Reading.  Motion to approve the reading and table until next meeting was made  

   by Councilwoman Marchini, seconded by Councilman Cioni, and was passed on  

   a vote of 4-0. 

2. Ordinance 3862 (1st reading) – authorizing the terms for conveyance of 301-303,305,and 

307-309 Arch Street to the Cumberland Housing Alliance, Inc. and authorizing execution 

of a deed to effect the transfer 



   Mr. Rhodes reviewed the proposed Ordinance that will include properties to  

   complete the group of properties that had previously been authorized for   

   conveyance to the CHA. 

   FIRST READING:  The Ordinance was presented in title only for its First  

   Reading.  Motion to approve the reading and table until next meeting was made  

   by Councilman Frazier, seconded by Councilman Cioni, and was passed on  

   a vote of 4-0. 

IX. (B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

  Mr. Rhodes reviewed each item on the Consent Agenda, and Mayor Morriss called for  

  questions or comments.  Motion to approve all Consent Agenda items was made by  

  Councilwoman Marchini, seconded by Councilman Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 4- 

  0. 

 Order 26,551 authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into an MOU with the Allegany 

County Health Dept. to conduct mini "take-back" events and medication pick-ups within 

the community between 10/15/19 and 6/1/2020, with $3000 in grant money appropriated 

from the Health Dept. for this initiative 

 Order 26,552 authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY20 Maryland Center for 

School Safety SRO/Adequate Coverage Grant in the amount of $49,000 for additional 

School Resource Officers and to supplement the existing SRO Program by providing 

more coverage among the City's elementary, middle and high schools 

 Order 26,553 accepting the sole source proposal from Keystone Ford, Chambersburg, PA 

for a new 2019 Ford F-550 Regular Cab Dump Truck with Plow and Spreader for an 

amount not to exceed $85,230 

  Mr. Rhodes advised that the low bidder was not able to provide the equipment, so 

 they went with Keystone which was the  second lowest bidder, due to the winter 

 season coming up soon, and added they will provide the Co-Star price to the 

 City, even though we are not a member. 

 Order 26,554 authorizing the sole source purchase of a new Exmark Lazer 37HP Yanmar 

Diesel, 96” Rear Discharge Mower from Western Maryland Outdoor Power, Inc. for an 

amount not to exceed $28,099 

  Mr. Rhodes advised that this is being purchased through Source Well, a 

 cooperative that the City is a member of, and added that the trade-in amount of 

 $5,500 for an older mower will be applied to this purchase 

 Order 26,555 abating the taxes and utilities owed on City-owned property at 609 

Maryland Avenue 

 Order 26,556 authorizing execution of a Construction Agreement with CSX 

Transportation, Inc. outlining terms for the removal and replacement of the Cumberland 

Street Bridge 



  Mr. Cohen explained that this agreement covers solely the construction of the 

 Cumberland St. Bridge, from permitting all the way through to completion of 

 construction. 

 Order 26,557 authorizing execution of a Deed Surrendering Possibility of Reverter / 

Right of Entry acknowledging that the Cumberland Housing Alliance, Inc. (CHA) has 

satisfied the development requirements of the Quitclaim Deed transferring City-owned 

property and improvements at 32-34 Virginia Avenue to the CHA (Land Records Book 

2375, Page 140) and, therefore, surrendering unto CHA all of the rights, title and interest 

held by the City to the property 

  Mr. Rhodes advised that the CHA has satisfied the requirement provided for in 

 the deed, and this turns a clear title over to them per the terms of the reverter 

 clause. 

 Order 26,558 accepting the bid from Queen City Business Systems to supply six (6) new 

copiers, including support, maintenance, overage charges, supplies and other 

specifications stated in the Multi-function Copier Proposal bid package, in the amount 

not to exceed $31,400 

 Order 26,559 authorizing execution of a First Amendment to the AFSCME Local #553 

Collective Bargaining Agreement in effect for the period March 1, 2016, through 

February 28, 2021 

 Order 26,560 declaring a 2005 Toro Groundsmaster 580D mower to be surplus 

equipment and authorizing it for sale or trade-in 

X. Public Comments 

Kenneth Wilmot, 513 Fort Avenue, discussed having street cameras for surveillance and mentioned an 

incident in Milwaukee that benefitted from the video evidence.  He also mentioned he had been 

approached by a panhandler at Chick-fil-A.   

Mayor Morriss advised that the City was looking at the possibility of more cameras on Baltimore St. and 

the downtown area. 

Mr. Rhodes recognized interim Police Chief Captain Chuck Ternent, and M&CC expressed appreciation 

for his taking on that role. 

 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

 

XI. Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 

   

  Minutes approved on ________________________ 

 



  Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor ___________________________ 

 

  ATTEST: Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk ___________________________ 



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Tuesday, November 5, 2019 

4:30 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, and 

Laurie Marchini.   Council Member Seth Bernard was absent 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey D. Rhodes, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 

Woodring, City Clerk; Bobby Smith, City Engineer 

 

MEDIA:  Paul Mullen, WCBC Radio 

 

PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA REVIEW 

 

I. PROPOSED PARADES AND SPECIAL EVENTS ORDINANCE 

   

Mr. Cohen advised on the proposed parade and special events ordinance, saying that the City 

currently has no such ordinance, and explained that the problem lies in terms of how to apply rules 

and regulations in a fair and consistent manner.  He advised on the similarities of parades, marches, 

and processions, and added that special events would fall under any activity that would gather 

more than 50 people, or an activity which would involve the sale of food, alcohol or merchandise, 

and/or the erection of tents, platforms, or other structures.  Mr. Cohen advised that events organized 

by the DDC are an exception to this ordinance, as the DDC has its own rules and procedures. 

 

Mr. Cohen stated there will now be a permit fee of $150 and advised on the permitting process and 

specific standards in regards to traffic interruption, police/fire interference, etc., and the need for 

consultation with the Police, Fire, and Street Departments.  Mr. Cohen advised on insurance 

compliance, and added that organizations that don’t want to provide insurance can opt for showing 

good cause, which can be accepted or denied by the City Administrator.  Mr. Cohen also advised on 

the consumption of alcohol requirements, hold-harmless provisions, and bond requirements for 

clean-up. 

 

Mr. Cohen discussed an issue that was never covered before, which is diverting employees from 

their jobs for these special events, with the City incurring costs in terms of overtime (EMS, Police & 

Street Dept., etc.).  He explained how overtime or time beyond normal cost can be recouped from 

the event holder, unless waived by M&CC. 

 

Mr. Rhodes mentioned the challenges of having events in the City, like races, and the fact that three 

officers, which may be half the staff, are needed on a Saturday to close an intersection for the 

runners; all the personnel needed for the annual Hooley Pub Crawl, and in recent years modifying 



2 
 

how ambulances are sent to high school athletic events.  Mr. Cohen stated that this proposed 

ordinance would make obligations uniform, with always the same procedures.   

Mr. Rhodes suggested getting the document out to the organizations that come to the City yearly for 

event permission, so it won’t come as a surprise. 

 

Mr. Mullen of WCBC inquired about pass-through events like the Ride for Freedom, and if that 

would be covered under this proposed ordinance.  Mr. Cohen advised that it technically falls within 

the parameters of a parade, as it’s on City streets.  When asked about M&CC waiving the fee for 

that, he advised that the City should avoid arbitrary waivers, and look at events on a case-by-case 

basis, and look at the criteria. 

 

Mr. Mullen also inquired about football games at the stadium, and if the Board of Education pays 

for an ambulance to be there.  Mr. Rhodes advised that there have been times the Board has paid for 

the ambulance, with the City sending out a crew on overtime that didn’t affect normal operations, 

and other times the City has sent an ambulance on the stipulation that if a call comes in, they leave.  

Mr. Cohen advised that these events are on Allegany County Board of Education property and 

would not be covered under the terms of this proposed ordinance. 

 

II. ARCH STREET PROPERTIES PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

  

Mr. Cohen advised that this proposed ordinance relates to properties being conveyed to the 

Cumberland Housing Alliance, and added that they are small lots that the CHA will be using to 

combine for constructing a residential dwelling.  Mr. Rhodes advised on the relationship that the 

City has with the CHA, saying that it is a segment of the Cumberland Housing Authority, with the 

M&CC appointing the board of directors but exercising no day-to-day control over their operation, 

or having any financial obligation to them.  He added that hypothetically if they were to go defunct 

their assets would default to the City as their original sponsor from back in the 1950s. 

 

III. ORDERS 

 

Mr. Rhodes reviewed the upcoming Orders for tonight’s Regular Session: 

 

o Order 26,551 - Police Dept. MOU with the Health Dept. for a drug take-back event. 

o Order 26,552 - School Safety Grant – “adequate coverage” grant – supplementing the 

SRO program with $49K for overtime, but not adding an SRO. 

o Order 26,553 - Sole Source proposal from Keystone for Ford F550 dump truck with 

plow.  Keystone is the 2nd lowest bidder, with the lowest bidder not being able to 

produce the vehicle in time for winter.  Keystone is honoring the Co-Star pricing, 

even though the City is not a member. 

o Order 26,554 - Sole Source purchase of a mower from WMD Outdoor Power, but 

through the co-op Source Well, which the City is a member of.  The mower it is 

replacing is on this agenda as surplus equipment. 

o Order 26,555 - Tax and utilities abatement for 609 Maryland Avenue, a property that 

the City has acquired. 



3 
 

o Order 26,556 - Construction agreement with CSX for removal and replacement of the 

Cumberland Street Bridge, covering the construction of the bridge and nothing else, 

from permitting to payment of costs, and all procedures relative to the process.  It is 

an 80-Gov’t/20-CSX split for financing.  This agreement covers destruction and 

construction, and Mr. Cohen advised that all 3 bridges will need to be torn down as 

none are salvageable. Mr. Smith advised that bid-ready should be around July 2021, 

construction expected to begin in spring of 2022, with a 6-12 month completion. 

o Order 26,557 – Execution of a Deed Surrendering Possibility of Reverter/Right of 

Entry acknowledging that the CHA has satisfied development requirements of 

construction of a single-family dwelling at 32/34 Virginia Ave. for the Quitclaim 

Deed, and was done before the deadline.  They opted to have all restrictions 

removed from the deed, which gives them a clear title. 

o Order 26,558 – Accepting the bid from Queen City Business Systems for copiers, 

which was the lower of the two bids.  The City swaps out copiers every 5 years or so. 

o Order 26,559 – Authorizing execution of a First Amendment to the AFSCME  AFL-

CIO Local #553 Collective Bargaining Agreement, which recognizes their right to 

organize shift trades amongst themselves without management involvement. 

o Order 26,560 – Determining a 2005 Toro Groundsmaster mower to be surplus 

equipment and authorizing its disposal or trade-in.  This mower will be a trade-in for 

the new mower to be purchased in Order 26,554, and will reduce that cost by $5,500. 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 

With nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 5:16 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Minutes approved ___________________________ 

 

 





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,584 - authorizing execution of Change Order No.1 with First Fruits Excavating, Inc. 

for City project "Cumberland Street Retaining Wall (24-18-M)" in the increased value of 

$33,280, bringing the new contract value to $152,530 and providing an additional 60 

calendar days on the project timeline 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,584                   DATE:    January 21, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 1 with First Fruits Excavating, Inc., 407 Plum Run Road, Ridgeley, WV, 26753 

for City Project “Cumberland Street Retaining Wall” (24-18-M) in the increased amount 

of Thirty-three Thousand, Two Hundred Eighty Dollars and No Cents ($33,280.00), 

bringing the total contract amount to One Hundred Fifty-two Thousand, Five Hundred 

Thirty Dollars and No Cents ($152,530.00); and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this Change Order provides for sixty (60) 

additional calendar days. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

First Fruits Contract Amount 

Original Contract Amount $119,250.00 

Change Order No. 1 $  33,280.00 

Total Contract Amount $152,530.00 

 





Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 7, 2019 

Agenda Item Number:  

Key Staff Contact: John DeVault 

 

Item Title: 

Change Order No. 1 Cumberland Street Retaining Wall – First Fruits Excavating, Inc. (24-18-M) 

 

Summary: 

This Change Order is in the increased value of $33,280.00.  Original contract value was $119,250.00.  

With this additional work the new contract value is $152,530.00, with an additional 60 calendar days 

added.  This Change Order will allow for the installation of under-drain and will allow for some 

additional sidewalk work to be completed.   

  

 

Issues and Considerations: 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  Yes   □  No 

Budget: CDBG 

Value of award: $33,280.00 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes    x  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    x  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □ Yes    x  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,585 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute Change Order No. 1 with 

Miracle/Taylor Sports and Recreation to incorporate Prevailing Wage Rates for an 

increased amount of $4,616.91 bringing the total contract amount to $52,655.91 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,585                    DATE:    January 21, 2020 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change Order 

No. 1 to the current contract with Miracle Recreation Equipment (Taylor Sports and 

Recreation), PO Box 1706, Martinsburg, WV, 25402, to incorporate Prevailing Wage rates for 

Phase I of the Inclusive Playground Project at Grove 4 in Constitution Park in the increased 

amount of Four Thousand, Six Hundred Sixteen Dollars and Ninety-one Cents ($4,616.91), 

bringing the current contract total to Fifty-two Thousand, Six Hundred Fifty-five Dollars and 

Ninety-one Cents ($52,655.91). 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

           Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
 

 

 

 

Miracle Recreation Equip./ 

Taylor Sports & Rec. 

Contract 

Amount 

Original Contract Amount $  48,039.00 

Change Order No. 1 $    4,616.91 

Total Contract Amount $  52,655.91 

 
Funding:  Bowers Trust Fund 



 

1/16/2020   Page 1 of 2 

  

 
 
 
Miracle Recreation Equipment Co 
Taylor Sports and Recreation 
PO Box 1706 
Martinsburg,WV  25402 
(304) 263-7857 (phone) 
(304) 263-9392 (fax) 
Melinda.Markle23@gmail.com 

Wednesday, January 15, 2020  
 
Kathy McKenney 
CITY OF CUMBERLAND 
City Hall 
57 N. Liberty St 
Cumberland, MD  21502 
(301) 759-6431 (phone) 
kathy.mckenneyt@cumberlandmd.gov 

 
Constitution Park | R0042190222 
 

Dear Kathy McKenney, 
 

You asked me to break out the pricing for Phase 1 and Phase 2 that pricing is as follows: 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 Include Prevailing Wages and Certified Payrolls per the Wage scale sent to 
me by the City of Cumberland 
 
Phase 1 
 
Furnish and Install playground equipment to include 3 bay arch swing, cyclo cone climber, inclusive 
Whirl and 3 free standing panels, replace broken slide on small unit and removal and disposal of 
large unit.  Install TY Wall lower side, double stacked timbers, push back mulch and re-install. 
 
Equipment Price Phase 1 $25,946.91 
Installation for Phase 1              $26,709.00 
Total Price for Phase 1             $52,655.91 
 
 
 
Phase 2 to include the following: 
 
Removal of 150-170 yards EWC, installation of drainage, fill playground area/ clean and fill, 
2600 sq ft of stone and poured in place surfacing 
 
Installation of Phase 2 $17,997.50 
Poured in Place Surfacing         $40,778.40 
Total Price for Phase 2 $58,775.90 
 
Prices for Phase 2 are subject to change due to Price Increases after February 2020 for the 
Surfacing 

 

Miracle Recreation Equip. Co. 
878 E US Hwy 60 

Monett, MO  65708 
1-888-458-2752 



 

1/16/2020   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
This price is based on normal soil conditions; should we incur excessive rock there will be       
an extra charge, that charge would be determined during the installation  
 

 

You must provide a construction dumpster for the safety surfacing company and security for the  

surfacing while it’s curing which usually takes about 48 hours..  Surfacing must be done 

 in 40 degree weather or above 

 
 
Should you decide to accept this proposal please sign where indicated below and sign the quote 
form, make your purchase order out to Miracle Recreation Equipment Company and send 
everything back to me along with a copy of your tax exempt certificate. 
 
 
If you have any questions or need anything else please contact me. 
 
 
Thank you 
Melinda Markle 

Miracle Recreation Equipment Co 

              
 
 
 
 
 
**  _________________________________                  **  __________________________ 
     Signature                                              Date              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number: Order 26,585 

Key Staff Contact: Kathy McKenney 

 

Item Title: 

Order 26,585 authorizing the City Administrator to execute Change Order No. 1 with 
Miracle/Taylor Sports and Recreation to incorporate Prevailing Wage rates for an increased 
amount of $4,616.91 bringing the total contract amount to $52,655.91 

 

Summary: 

The original proposal from Miracle Recreation Equipment Co. (Taylor Sports and Recreation) 
did not incorporate Prevailing Wages for Phase 1 of the Inclusive Playground Project.  The 
original approval was for $48,039.00 in Order #26,583 from December 17, 2019.  The revised 
price is $52,655.91.  The difference of $4,616.91 will be paid with funds from the Bowers 
Trust.  Phase 2 of the project will not take place at this time. 

  

 

 

Funding:  Bowers Fund 

 

Is this item budgeted?  □ Yes   □  No 

Budget: Enter Text Here 

Value of award: Enter Text Here 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes    □  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    □  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    □  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,586 - accepting the bid of Harbel, Inc. for City project "Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs 

– Phase 3" (38-19-BR) in the estimated unit cost of $82,637.00, to provide for the 

replacement of overhang and enclosed sidewalk on the Koon Dam Bridge 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,586                     DATE:    _January 21, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

 

THAT, the bid from Harbel, Inc., 11521 Milnor Avenue, Cumberland, MD 21502, 

for City Project “Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs-Phase 3 (38-19-BR) in the estimated unit 

cost of Eighty-two Thousand, Six Hundred Thirty-seven Dollars and No Cents 

($82,637.00) be and is hereby accepted; and, 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that all other bids for this project be and are 

hereby rejected. 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 
 

Bids: 

Contractor Amount 

Harbel, Inc. $82,637.00 

MAR-ALLEN Concrete, Inc. $185,415.00 

 

Source of Funding:  002.299D.63000 

 





Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

Agenda Item Number:  

Key Staff Contact: Matt Idleman 

 

Item Title: 

Award Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs – Phase 3  

 

Summary: 

It is the Engineering Departments Recommendation to award City Project 38-19-BR Koon Dam 

Sidewalk Repairs – Phase 3 to the low responsive bidder Harbel, Inc in the estimate unit cost of 

$82,637.00.  One other bid was received from MAR-ALLEN Concrete, Inc in the estimate unit cost of 

$185,415.00. This phase of the project will be to replace approx. 350 LF of overhang sidewalk and 140 

LF of enclosed sidewalk on the Koon Dam Bridge.   

  

Issues and Considerations: 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  X Yes   □  No 

Budget: 002.299D.63000 

Value of award: $82,637.00 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes    x  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    x  No   

Match 

provisions: 

 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    x  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and 

approval from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,587 - declaring a 2011 International Ambulance (VIN: 3HAMNAAL5BL408030) as 

surplus equipment and authorizing it for sale or trade-in 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,587                DATE:   January 21, 2020 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of a 

certain vehicle that has been determined to be of no further value to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to dispose of said equipment; 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the following equipment is hereby declared to be surplus 

property and authorized for sale or trade-in: 

 

1. 2011 International Ambulance 

 VIN: 3HAMNAAL5BL408030 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 
 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,588 - authorizing Acting Chief of Police Chuck Ternent to accept a FY20 GOCCP 

Police Recruitment & Retention Grant in the amount of $24,000 for the purchase of 

recruitment media, pay incentives to officers for successful candidate referrals, and 

signing bonuses for successful academy trainees 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,588                     DATE:     January 21 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the Interim Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to accept a 

GOCCP Grant for FY20 entitled “Police Recruitment and Retention” in the amount of 

Twenty-four Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($24,000.00) for the period 07/01/2019 to 

06/30/2020, to assist in the purchase of recruitment media, and to help fund pay 

incentives to officers for successful candidate referrals and signing bonuses for 

successful academy trainees.  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

Grant: PRAR-2020-0006 

 































Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

Agenda Item Number: FY20 Police Recruitment & Retention Grant 

Key Staff Contact: Capt. Chuck Ternent 

 

Item Title: 

FY20 Police Recruitment & Retention Grant 

 

Summary: 

Authorize Captain Chuck Ternent, Interim Chief, to accept the FY20 Police Recruitment and Retention 

Grant in the amount of $24,000 awarded by the Governor’s Office for Crime Control and Prevention 

(GOCCP) who recognizes the state-wide shortage of police candidates and has offered funds to help local 

agencies recruit and retain police officers.  These funds will help fund recruitment media such as posters 

and videos as well as pay incentives for officers who refer successful candidates as well as and signing 

bonuses for officers who successfully complete academy training.   

  

Issues and Considerations: 

Enter Text Here 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?   Yes   X  No 

Budget: $ 

Value of award: $24,000 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?   X Yes      No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes   X  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    □  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,589 - accepting the bids for purchase of one new mid-size SUV from Thomas 

Hyundai ($27,797), and one 1/2 ton pickup truck ($33,594) and one 1/2 ton work truck 

($30,939.60) from Diehl’s Ford Sales 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,589                    DATE:     January 21, 2020 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the bid of Thomas Hyundai, 10325 Mt. Savage Road, NW, Cumberland, 

MD 21502, and the bid of Diehl’s Ford Sales, 11782 National Pike, Grantsville, MD, 21536 

for Utilities Vehicles be and is hereby accepted as follows: 

 

Company Vehicle Cost 

Thomas Hyundai One New Midsize SUV  $27,797.00 

Diehl’s Ford Sales One New ½ Ton Work Truck  

One New ½ Ton Pickup Truck 

$30,939.60 

$33,594.00 

 TOTAL $92,330.60 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

Budget: 001.050.64000 (Public Works) 

 002.220.64000 (Water Dist.) 

 003.310.64000 (WWTP) 



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number:   

Key Staff Contact: Brian Broadwater 

 

Item Title: 

Order 26,589 - New Vehicles Purchase – Thomas Hyundai and Diehl’s Ford Sales 

 

Summary: 

Requesting an order to accept the bid of Thomas Hyundai for one (1) new Midsize SUV ($27,797.00) and 

Diehl’s Ford Sales for one (1) New ½ Ton Work Truck ($30,939.60), one (1) New ½ Ton Pickup Truck 

($33,594.00) 

 

  

Issues and Considerations: 

The department of Vehicle Maintenance / Public Works has reviewed all bids and recommends the 

awards noted above.   

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?     Yes (FY2020)    

Budget:    001.050.64000 (Public Works) 002.220.64000 (Water Dis.) 003.310.64000 

(WWTP) 

Value of award: Total bid award = $92,330.60 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   N/A 

Is there grant funding being used?  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  N/A   

Match provisions:  N/A 

Is this a sole source purchase?   N/A   (If so, attach department recommendation and approval from City 

Administrator.) 

  



Company

1. One New 1/2 Ton Pickup 

Work Truck

2. One New 1/2 Ton Pikcup 

Truck

3. One New Midsize 

SUV Affidavit Local Preference

Diehl's Ford Sales 30,939.60$                                33,594.00$                               No Bid Yes N/A

11782 National Pike

Grantsville, MD 21536

Thomas Hyundai No Bid No Bid 27,797.00$                     Yes County

10325 Mt. Savage Road

Cumberland, MD 21502

The Department of Public Works  will review all proposals and provide a recommendation to  

the Mayor and City Council for award based on the lowest and most responsive bid received.

City of Cumberland
Bid Opening: December 18, 2019 2:30 p.m., Cumberland City Hall Council Chambers

2019 Request for Bids - Utility Vehicles



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,590 - accepting the Sole Source proposal of Marshall Ruby and Sons for repair of the 

rotating mechanical screens at Evitts Creek Pumping Station, in the amount of $48,000 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,590                     DATE:     January 21, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the sole source proposal of Marshal Ruby & Sons, 20501 Rubys Industrial 

Road, Frostburg, Maryland, 21532 , to repair damaged rotating mechanical screens at the 

Evitts Creek Pumping Station, be and is hereby approved in the estimated cost of Forty-eight 

Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($48,000.00). 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Source of Funding: 

399.TP5.63000 

 



I

Marshall Ruby & Sons
20501 Rubys Industrial Road

Frostburg, MD 21532
PH 301-689-9238
Fax 301-689-6121

Dec. 31,2019

City of Cumberland
Evitts Creek
Attn:Bob Fryer

RE: Evitts Creek pumping station

Estimate

Estimated cost to supply all labor and tooling to repair damaged bar screen at Evitts creek

pumping station
$48,000.00

If you have any questions concerning this estimate please contact me.

Thanks

John Wilson



1t15t2020 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Fwd: Sole Source Request Approval

Cindi Mertens <cindi.mertens@cumberlandmd.gov>Gme=fi*

Fwd: Sole Source Request Approval
1 message

Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> Wed, Jan 15,2020 at 6:36 AM
Tlc: Cindi Mertens <cindi.mertens@cumberlandmd.gov>

Hello Cindi,

See amail thread below. Con you add this to M&CC agendo for their opproval?

Thonks,

Rodney C. Maruin
Public Works Utilities Manager
City of Cumberland
301-759-6641

Foruvarded message
From : Jeff Rhodes <jeff . rhodes@cu m berla nd md. gov>
Date: Tue, Jan 14, 2020 al l l :59 AM
Subject: Re: Sole Source Request Approval
To: Rodney Marvi n <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd. gov>
Cc: Ken Tressler <ken.tressler@cumberlandmd.gov>, Stephanie Wade <stephanie.wade@cumberlandmd.gov>

Approved
Jeffrey D. Rhodes
City Administrator
City of Cumberland, Maryland
3At759-6424

On Mon, Jan 13, 2020 at8:05 AM Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:

left,

I om reguesting opprovol for Morsholl Ruby & Sons in the omount of $48,000 to repoir the rofating mechanical

screens ot Evitts Creek Lift Stotion. Morshall Ruby is the only contractor within our ragion who hos the
expertise to provide this service.

The omount requested above is considerobly less than the $150,000 estimote which the scteen monufacturer

"Hydrodyne" wos going to charge for this service.

Note: If approved.... this will placed on M&CC council agenda for final approvol

$150,000 is funded in 399.TP5 63000

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=f3d50a3ca56y;gvi/=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A16557940123'17286430&simpl=msg-fo/03A16557940123... 112



1115t2020 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Fwd: Sole Source Request Approval

Rodney C. Maruin
Public Work l.itilities Manager
City of Cumberland
30i-759-6641

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=f3d50a3ca56v;s\M=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1655794012317286430&simpl=msg-f%3A16557940123... 212



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,591 - accepting the Sole Source bid of CAMCO, Inc. for the repair of twenty-five 

(25) High Voltage Breakers at the JJD Water Reclamation Facility in the not-to-exceed 

cost of $125,000 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,591                     DATE:     January 21, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the sole source bid of CAMCO, Inc., 667 Industrial Park Road, Ebensburg, 

PA, 15931, to repair twenty-five (25) high-voltage breakers at the JJD Water Reclamation 

Facility, be and is hereby approved in the not-to-exceed cost of One Hundred Twenty-five 

Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($125,000.00). 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Budget: 399.TP1.63000 

 

 

 



c4MC@
An ARtul &rcup lnc* Gompany

January 6.2020
BID # I9.4650-KR-LS

City of Cumberland
400 Offirlt Street
Curnberland. MD 21501

Attention: Dan Moessner

RE: Ilreaker rebuilds for Dewatering Location & Main Electrical tluilding

Dear Mr. Moessner

Per your request on the above nrentioned project. we are pleased to ofttr the tbllowing.

l. Provicle pickup and de livery of the brcakers l'rom your Cumberland . MD plant to our tibensburg. PA
facilit"v

1. Breakers will be rcconditioned as per our attaclred proccdure CAM l0g4-A

(a) One(l)toeleven{ll)CEAK-2A-25manuallyoperateddrawoutcircuitbreakers.

Base price $2695.00 Each

lf an AC-PRO solid state trip kit is required add $1920.00 to the base price.
Kit will bc supplied rvith 600i300 amp sensors and manual reset actuator.

(b) One ( l) to fourtcen ( l4) CE AK-IA-50 electrically operatcd drarv out circuit breakers.

Base price $3395.00 Each

lf an AC-PRO solid state trip kit is requirecl add $2370.00 to the base price.
Kit will be supplied with 1600i800 antp sensors and mechanical autol reset actuator.

Quoted price does not includc the cost or replacerncnt of an.'- parts fbund dcf'ective, Upon receiving your prior
approval. these items will be providcd to ),ou at a quoted price.

Delivery 'Iirne depends upon CAMCO'S work load at time of order

Tenns l% l0 Days Net 30 Days

'fhank you for the opportunit;- to provide tlris quotatiorr. lf you should have any questions or comments. Please feel
t'r'ee to contact this office.

Sincerely.
CAMCO
Kevin Radebach
Shop Supervisor

667 In.lrrsrrial Pirrk Road . Ebenshrrrg, PA I 5931
Plrone, Bl447Z-7980 . Fax: 814-477-5615 . uulr-.carncocng.c()n-r



111612020 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Fwd: Sole Source Approval Request

Cffi,'- ** cindiMertens<cindi.mertens@cumberlandmd.sov>
r. l, .' r, .r i.,

Fwd: Sole Source Approval Request
'1 message

Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd. gov>
To : Ci nd i Mertens <cind i. mertens@cu mberland md. gov>

Cindi,

Would you add this to M&CC agenda.

Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

Begin foruvarded message:

Wed, Jan 15,2020 at 7:08 PM

From : Jeff Rhodes <jeff. rhodes@cum berlandmd.gov>
Date: January 15,2020 at 3:30:40 PM EST
To: Rodney Marvin <rod ney. marvin@cumberland md. gov>
Subject: Re: Sole Source Approval Request

Approved

Jeffrey D. Rhodes
City Administrator
City of Cumberland, Maryland
301-759-6424

On Wed, Jan 15, 2020 at 1 :31 PM Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:
Hello Jeff ,

Did you get o chonce lo review this reguest olso?

I

lhanl(s,

: Rodney C. Maruin
. Public Work Utilities Manager

: City of Cumberland

: 301-759-664r

i

I On Mon, Jan 13, 2O2O at7:47 AM Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:
I I Jeff,

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/o?ik=f3d50a3ca56v;sv/=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1655841274223791071&simpl=msg-f%3A16558412742... 112



1t16t2020 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Fwd: Sole Source Approval Request

f om raguesting Sole Source opprovol for Comco fnc. Compony (Ebensburg, PA) in the omount of
$131,475 to repoir 25 high voltage (480V & 4160V) breakers ot the Wastewater Treatment
Plont. Sole Source is necessory; Camco Inc. is tha only compony within our region who hos the
expertise ond ports requiredfor the vintage 7970's switchgear.

Note: If opproved...... this will also be M&CC agenda for f inol opproval
The ottoched estimote shows the cost will be between $77 ,125 ond $131,475.... I am

requesting the not to exceed amount.

$125,000 wos funded for this project in 399.TPl 630@

Rodney C. Maruin
Public Works Utilities Manager
City of Cumberland
301-759-6641

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=f3d50a3ca56u;s\r/=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1655841274223791071&simpl=msg-f%3416558412742... 212



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,592 - appointing Anita Simmons, Natural Resource Technician for the City of 

Cumberland, to the Evitts Creek Steering Committee as City Appointee I, to fill the seat 

vacated by Paul Eriksson 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,592                     DATE:     January 21, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, Anita Simmons, Natural Resource Technician for the City of Cumberland, be 

and is hereby appointed to the Evitts Creeks Steering Committee as City Appointee I, to fill 

the seat vacated by Paul Eriksson. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,593 - declaring a 2007 Chrysler Aspen (VIN #1A8HW58287F586936) to be surplus 

and authorizing it for sale or trade in 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,593                DATE:   January 21, 2020 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of a 

certain vehicle that has been determined to be of no further value to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to dispose of said equipment; 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the following equipment is hereby declared to be surplus 

property and authorized for sale or trade-in: 

 

1. 2007 Chrysler Aspen 

 VIN 1A8HW58287F586936 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 
 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,594 - adopting a revised Investment Policy effective this date, to govern the 

investment of public funds while meeting daily cash flow demands 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,594                     DATE:     January 21, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 THAT, the attached and revised Investment Policy be and is hereby adopted and 

effective this date. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 1 2/18  

Cumberland, Maryland 
 

COMPTROLLER 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
 
 

I. POLICY 
 
It is the policy of Cumberland, Maryland (hereinafter referred to as “the City”) to invest 

public funds in a manner which will conform to all State of Maryland and City statutes 
governing the investment of public funds while meeting its daily cash flow demands with a 
goal of providing a rate of return at least equaling the 3 month T-bill. 

 
II. SCOPE 

 
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City.  These fund types are 
accounted for in the City’s Annual Financial Report and include: 
 
A. General 
B. Special Revenue Funds 
C. Capital Project Funds (including Bond Funds) 
D. Enterprise Funds 
E. Trust and Agency Funds 
F. Any new funds as provided by City ordinance. 

 
III. PRUDENCE 

 
A. The standard of prudence to be applied by the Comptroller shall be the 

“prudent person” rule, which states, “Investments shall be made with 
judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons 
of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of 
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the 
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be 
derived.” 
 
The prudent person rule shall be applied in the context of managing the 
overall portfolio. 

 
B. Authorized employees acting in accordance with written procedures and 

the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall not be held 
personally responsible for an individual security’s credit risk or market 
price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 2 2/18  

timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse 
developments. 

 
IV. OBJECTIVE 

 
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities shall be: 

 
A. Safety:  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment 

program.  Investments of the City shall be undertaken in a manner that 
seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.  To 
attain this objective, diversification, third party collateralization and 
safekeeping, and delivery versus payment will be required. 

 
B. Liquidity:  The City’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to 

enable the City to meet all operating requirements which might be 
reasonably anticipated. 

 
C. Return on Investment:  The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed 

with the objective of providing a reasonable return throughout budgetary 
and economic cycles considering the City’s investment risk constraints 
and the cash flow requirement of the portfolio.   goal of attaining a return 
at least equal to the three-month U.S. Treasury bill yield. 

V. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 

A. Authority to manage the City’s investment program is derived from state 
law (Article 95 and Title 6 of the Finance and Procurement Article of the 
Annotated Code of Maryland.) 

 
B. The Comptroller shall develop and maintain written administrative 

procedures for the operation of the investment program, consistent with 
this investment policy.  Such procedures shall include: 

 
1. Explicit delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment 

transactions.  No person may engage in an investment transaction 
except as provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures 
established by the Comptroller. 

 
2. Procedures should include reference to safekeeping, PSA repurchase 

agreements, wire transfer agreements, collateral/depository 
agreements and banking service agreements. 

 
3. The Comptroller shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken 

and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of 
subordinate authorized employees. 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 3 2/18  

 
VI. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 
Officials and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 

business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or 
which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  Employees and 
investment officials shall disclose to the Comptroller any material financial interests in 
financial institutions that conduct business within this jurisdiction, and they shall further 
disclose any large personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the City’s portfolio.  Employees shall subordinate their personal investment 
transactions to those of the City, particularly with regard to the time of purchases and sales. 
The City’s Public Ethics Law (Chapter 19 of the City Code) includes provisions setting forth 
restrictions on officials’ and employees’ participation in matters pertaining to business 
entities in which they have a direct financial interest.  (See Section 19-(4)(b)(2)a)).  The 
Administrative Appeals Board has opined that “direct financial interest” means ownership 
or securities convertible to more than 3% ownership of a business entity.  

  
Officials and employees involved in the investment process are responsible for ensuring 
that their participation complies with the Public Ethics Law.  Employees with more than 3% 
interests in business entities which could possibly relate to the investment process must 
disclose such interests to the City Comptroller. 

 
 
VII. AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS 
 

The Comptroller shall maintain a list of approved security broker/dealers selected by 
credit worthiness who are authorized to provide investment services in the State.  These 
may include “primary” dealers or regional dealers that qualify under Securities & Exchange 
Commission Rule 15C3-1.  No deposit shall be made except in an institution which is a 
qualified public depository as established by the State of Maryland.  All financial institutions 
and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified brokers for investment transactions 
must supply the Comptroller with the following:  audited financial statements, proof of 
National Association of Security Dealers certification, trading resolution, proof of 
registration with the state of Maryland, and certification of having read the City’s 
Investment Policy and depository contracts.  An annual review of the financial condition and 
registrations of qualified bidders will be conducted by the Comptroller.  A current audited 
financial statement is required to be on file for each financial institution or broker/dealer 
through which the City invests. 

 
1. All dealers must agree to the City’s policy of delivery-versus-payment as 

described in Section XI of this policy. 
 

2. The firm must provide copies of its audited financial statements, which are 
reviewed carefully to assure that the firm is on sound financial footing.  The firm 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 4 2/18  

must also have adequate capital to fulfill its commitments under adverse market 
conditions. 

 
3. The firm must be registered and located in the State of Maryland.  Commercial 

banks must have a short-term rating of at least investment grade from the 
appropriate bank rating agencies. 

 
 
VIII. DIVERSIFICATION IN AUTHORIZED & SUITABLE INVESTMENTS 
 

The City will diversify to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over-investing in 
specific instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities.  Maryland State law 
pertaining to authorized instruments is attached. 

 
         Maximum Percent 
                of Portfolio 
 

A. Diversification by Instrument 
 

1. U.S. Treasury Obligations  ……………………………………. 100% 
 

2. Maryland Local Government ………………………………..   90100% 
 

3. Repurchase Agreements (Master Repurchase 
Agreement required) …………………………………………….   70% 

 
4. Collateralized Certificates of Deposit 

(Only Maryland Commercial Banks) ……………………..    70% 
 

5. U.S. Government Agency and U.S. Government- 
Sponsored …………………………………………………………….   50% 

 
 

B. Diversification by Institution 
 

1. U.S. Treasury Direct System ………………………………….. 100% 
 

2. MLGIP ……………………………………………………………………   90100% 
 

3. Banking Institutions – Certificates 
of Deposit/Repos …………………………………………………..   70% 

 
C. Diversification ofMaximum Maturities 

 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 5 2/18  

To the extent possible, the City will attempt to match the investments with anticipated 
cash flow requirements.  Unless matched to a specific cash flow the City will not directly 
invest in securities maturing more than 2 years from the date of purchase.  

 
Reserve Funds may be invested in securities exceeding 2 years if the maturity of such 

investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of funds.  
 
 In order to meet the objectives of the City’s investment activities as listed in Section IV 

of this policy, the majority of the investments of the City will be on a short term basis.  (Less 
than one year).  However, a portion of the portfolio can contain investments with longer 
maturities (up to two years) without jeopardizing adequate safety and liquidity standard of 
the portfolio and at the same time increasing the overall yield of the portfolio.  The 
investments in long-term maturities will be limited to direct federal government obligations 
and to securities issued by U.S. Government agencies.  The length of maturity of the 
security will not exceed two years from the time of the City’s purchase.  The maximum level 
of long-term investments in the portfolio is determined by the following method: 

 
 
IX. BORROWING 

 
The City may not borrow solely for the purpose of investment and may not invest in a 

manner inconsistent with the Investment Policy. 
 

X. COLLATERALIZATION 
 

A. Collateralization will be required on certificates of deposit and repurchase 
agreements two types of investments which combined with cash and other accounts 
at a given institution are in excess of FDIC insurance coverage:  certificates of deposit 
and repurchase (and reverse) agreements.  In order to anticipate market changes 
and provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be at least 
102% of market value of the principal and accrued interest amounts above FDIC 
insurance limits. 

 
B. Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has 

a current custodial agreement and meet Category I requirements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement – Number 3. 

 
C. Acceptable collateral is specified under Section 6-202 of Title 6 of the State Finance 

and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.  However, the third- 
party trust custodian, who holds the collateral, has the right to reject otherwise 
acceptable collateral based on their discretion concerning market conditions. 

 
D. The right of collateral substitution is granted, and all associated costs will be paid by 

the seller. (Financial Institution). 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 6 2/18  

 
 
XI. SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 

 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by 

the City shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis.  Securities will be 
held by a third- party custodian designated by the Comptroller.  All repurchase agreements 
will be governed by a Master Repurchase Agreement signed by the appropriate officials of 
the City and the government dealer. 

 
 
 
 
XII. INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 

The Comptroller shall establish a system of internal controls, which shall be documented 
in writing.  The controls shall be designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from 
fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated changes in 
financial markets, or imprudent actions by employees and investment officers of the City.  A 
review of the internal controls of the investment operation is part of the annual financial 
audit conducted by an outside independent audit company. 

 
 
XIII. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
 

The City’s investment strategy in general is passive.  However, the strategy is active 
under special extenuating circumstances.  Given this strategy and taking into account the 
City’s investment risk constraints and cash flow needs, the three- month U.S. Treasury Bill 
yield was selected to gauge the City’s investment portfolio performance. 

 
 
XIV. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

An investment officer shall generate monthly reports for management purposes.  In 
addition, the City Council will be provided monthly reports which will include data on 
investment instruments being held, as well as any narrative necessary for clarification. 

 
 
 
 
__________________________    __________________________ 
COMPTROLLER      DATE 
 
 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 7 2/18  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GLOSSARY 
 
 

AGENCIES:  Federal agency securities. 
 
BANKERS’ ACCEPTANCE (BA):  A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company.  
The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the issuer. 
 
BROKER:  A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a commission paid by the initiator of 
the transaction or by both sides; he does not position.  In the money market, brokers are active 
in markets in which banks buy and sell money in inter-dealer markets. 
 
COLLATERAL:  Securities, evidence of deposit or other property which a borrower pledges to 
secure repayment of a loan.  Also refers to securities pledged by a bank to secure deposits of 
public monies. 
 
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD):  A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a 
certificate.  Large-denomination CDs are typically negotiable. 
 
DEALER:  A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, buying and 
selling for his own account. 
 
DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT:  There are two methods of delivery of securities:  delivery versus 
payment and delivery versus receipt (also called free).  Delivery versus payment is delivery of 
securities with an exchange of money for the securities.  Delivery versus receipt is delivery of 
securities with an exchange of a signed receipt for the securities. 
 
DISCOUNT SECURITIES:  Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at a 
discount and redeemed at maturity for full face value, e.g., U.S. Treasury bills. 
 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 8 2/18  

DIVERSIFICATION:  Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering 
independent returns. 
 
FEDERAL CREDIT AGENCIES:  Agencies of the Federal Government set up to supply credit to 
various classes of institutions and individuals, e.g., savings and loans, small business firms, 
students, farmers, farm cooperatives, and exporters. 
 
FEDERAL FUNDS RATE:  The rate of interest at which Fed funds are traded.  This rate is 
currently pegged by the Federal Reserve through open-market operations. 
 
FEDERAL OPEN MARKET COMMITTEE (FOMC):  Consists of seven members of the Federal 
Reserve Board and five of the twelve Federal Reserve Bank Presidents.  The President of the 
New York Federal Reserve Bank is a permanent member while the other Presidents serve on a 
rotating basis.  The Committee periodically meets to set Federal Reserve guidelines regarding 
purchases and sales of Government Securities in the open market as a means of influencing the 
volume of bank credit and money. 
 
FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM:  The central bank of the United States created by Congress and 
consisting of a seven member Board of Governors in Washington, D.C., 12 Regional Banks and 
about 5,700 commercial banks that are members of the system. 
 
FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (FDIC):  A federal agency that insures bank 
deposits, currently up to $100250,000 per deposit. 
 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS (FHLB):  The institutions that regulate and lend to savings and 
loan associations.  The Federal home Loan Banks play a role analogous to that played by the 
Federal Reserve Banks vis-à-vis member commercial banks. 
 
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (FNMA):  FNMA, like GNMA, was chartered 
under the Federal National Mortgage Association Act in 1938.  FNMA is a federal corporation 
working under the auspices of the Department of Housing & Urban Development, HUD.  It is 
the largest single provider of residential mortgage funds in the United States.  Fannie Mae, as 
the corporation is called, is a private stockholder-owned corporation.  The corporation’s 
purchases include a variety of adjustable mortgages and second loans in addition to fixed-rate 
mortgages.  FNMA’s securities are also highly liquid and are widely accepted.  FNMA assumes 
and guarantees that all security holders will receive timely payment of principal and interest. 
 
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (GNMA or Ginnie Mae):  Securities 
guaranteed by GNMA and issued by mortgage bankers, commercial banks, savings and loan 
associations and other institutions.  Security holder is protected by full faith and credit of the 
U.S. Government.  Ginnie Mae securities are backed by FHA, VA or FMHM mortgages.  The term 
“pass-throughs” is often used to describe Ginnie Maes. 
 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 9 2/18  

LIQUIDITY:  A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and rapidly into cash without 
substantial loss of value.  In the money market, a security is said to be liquid if the spread 
between bid and asked prices is narrow and reasonable size can be done at those quotes. 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL (LGIP):  The aggregate of all funds from political 
subdivisions that are placed in the custody of the State Treasurer for investment and 
reinvestment.  
 
MARKET VALUE:  The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or 
sold. 
 
MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT:  A written contract covering all future transactions 
between the parties to repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements that established each 
party’s right in the transactions.  A master agreement will often specify, among other things, 
the right of the buyer/lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the event of default by the 
seller/borrower. 
 
MATURITY:  The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due 
and payable. 
 
MONEY MARKET:  The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills, commercial paper, 
bankers’ acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded. 
 
OPEN MARKET OPERATIONS:  Purchases and sales of government and certain other securities 
in the open market by the New York Federal Reserve Bank as directed by the FOMC in order to 
influence the volume of money and credit in the economy.  Purchases inject reserves into the 
bank system and stimulate growth of money and credit; sales have the opposite effect.  Open 
market operations are the Federal Reserve’s most important and most flexible monetary policy 
tool. 
 
PORTFOLIO:  Collection of securities held by an investor. 
 
PRUDENT PERSON RULE:  An investment standard.  In some states, the law requires that a 
fiduciary, such as a trustee, may invest money only in a list of securities selected by the State 
(the so-called legal list).  In other states, the trustee may invest in a security if it is one which 
would be bought by a prudent person of discretion and intelligence who is seeking a reasonable 
income and preservation of capital. 
 
PRIMARY DEALER:  A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of 
market activity and positions and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve Bank of 
New York and are subject to its informal oversight.  Primary dealers include Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC), registered securities broker dealers, banks, and a few unregulated 
firms. 
 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 10 2/18  

RATE OF RETURN:  The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current 
market price.  This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income 
return. 
 
QUALIFIED PUBLIC DEPOSITORIES:  A financial institution which does not claim exemption from 
the payment of any sales or compensating use of ad valorem taxes under the laws of this state, 
which has segregated for the benefit of the commission eligible collateral having a value of not 
less than its maximum liability and which has been approved by the Public Deposit Protection 
Commission to hold public deposit.  
 
REPURCHASE AGREEMENT (Repo or Repos):  A holder of securities sells these securities to an 
investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date.  The security 
“buyer” in effect lends the “seller” money for the period of the agreement, and terms of the 
agreement are structured to compensate him for this.  Dealers use Repos extensively to finance 
their positions.  Exception:  When the Fed is said to be doing Repo, it is lending money, that is, 
increasing banks reserves. 
 
SAFEKEEPING:  A service to customers rendered by banks for a fee whereby securities and 
valuables of all types and descriptions are held in the bank’s vaults for protection 
 
SECONDARY MARKET:  A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues 
following the initial distribution. 
 
SEC RULE 15C3-1:  See uniform net capital rule. 
 
SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION:  Agency created by Congress to protect investors in 
securities transactions by administering securities legislation. 
 
TREASURY BILLS:  A non-interest bearing discount security issued by the U.S. Treasury to 
finance the national debt.  Most bills are issued to mature in three months, six months, or one 
year. 
 
TREASURY BOND:  Long-term U.S. Treasury securities having initial maturities of more than ten 
years. 
 
TREASURY NOTES:  Intermediate term coupon bearing U.S. Treasury securities having initial 
maturity of from one to ten years. 
 
YIELD:  The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage.  (a) 
INCOME YIELD is obtained by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price for 
the security.  (b) NET YIELD or YIELD TO MATURITY is the current income yield minus any 
premium above par or plus any discount from par in  purchase price, with the adjustment 
spread over the period from the date of purchase to the date of maturity of the bond. 
 



Comptroller    Cumberland, MD 
Investment Policy 11 2/18  

UNIFORM NET CAPITAL RULE:  Securities and Exchange Commission requirement that member 
firms as non-member broker-dealers in securities maintain a maximum ration of indebtedness 
to liquid capital of 15-1; also called net capital rule and net capital ratio.  Indebtedness covers 
all money owed to a firm, including margin loans and commitments to purchase securities, one 
reason new public issues are spread among members of underwriting syndicates.  Liquid capital 
includes cash and assets easily converted into cash. 
 
 
 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,595 - declaring certain parcels of property at 400 N. Mechanic Street to be surplus 

and authorizing the transfer of the properties to the Cumberland Economic Development 

Commission after the passage of twenty (20) days from the date of this Order and the 

passage of an Ordinance to effect the transfer 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,595                    DATE:      January 21, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of 

certain parcels of real property, together with the improvements thereon, which are known 

as 400 N. Mechanic Street in Cumberland, MD (hereinafter referred to as the “Properties”), 

the Properties being more particularly described in the Land Records of Allegany County, 

Maryland in Book 2307, Page 310 and Book 2307, Page 315; and 

WHEREAS, the Properties have been determined to be surplus property by the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland;  

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED, by the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, 

that: 

1. The Property is hereby declared to be surplus in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 1 of the Charter of the City of Cumberland; and 

2. The Mayor and City Council of Cumberland intend to transfer the Properties 

to the Cumberland Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) for the amount of One 

Dollar ($1.00); and 

3. The after passage of twenty (20) days from the date of this Order and the 

passage of an Ordinance authorizing the execution of the Deed effecting the conveyance of 

the Properties, formal transfer of the Properties to the CEDC may proceed. 

       

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 





























Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,596 - approving Amendment #7 to the Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) program funding pertaining to the Dental Access Program 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,596                    DATE:   _____January 21, 2020____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following amendments to the Community Development Block Grant Program 

be and are hereby approved effective January 21, 2020: 

 

 

 

Program Current  Amendment New Total 

2019 AHEC West Denture Program $7,000 ($7,000) 0 

2019 AHEC West Dental Access Program $8,000 $7,000 $15,000 

 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



 

 

Public Notice of Intent to Reprogram Community Development Block Grant Funds 

Amendment #71125019 

City of Cumberland                    

In accordance with federal regulations governing the Consolidated Planning process, the City of 

Cumberland is notifying the public regarding a proposal to reprogram Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) funds from activities affecting the 2019 Annual Action Plan.  Reprogramming CDBG funds 

in a timely manner enables the City to comply with HUD “Timeliness” standards and allows the funds to 

be used on “shovel ready” activities. 

The changes proposed for the FY 2019 Annual Action Plan primarily involve deleting funds associated 

with the AHEC West Denture project and reallocating these funds to the AHEC West Dental Access 

project.  AHEC West requested to terminate their 2019 AHEC West Denture project (RR19053) originally 

funded at $7,000. The funds were allocated for grants to qualifying individuals to acquire dentures at no 

cost.  It was discovered that the denture program is designed to more efficiently provide dentures using 

alternative funding sources.   AHEC West requested that funds ($7,000) originally allocated for the 

denture project be transferred to their 2019 AHEC West Dental Access project (RR19019) which was 

originally funded at $8,000 because program design is more similar to, and more suitable for, efficiently 

spending Community Development Block grant funds.   

As a result of the aforementioned proposed changes to the 2019 Annual Action Plan, the FY 2019 AHEC 

West Denture project is to be canceled and funding for the AHEC West Dental Access project is to be 

increased from $8,000 to $15,000. The 2019 application documented need in excess of the original 

$8,000 grant and great need still exists for emergency dental services for qualifying low-moderate 

income City of Cumberland residents.   

Written comments concerning the proposed amendment may be provided effective Friday, December 

20, 2019 through 4 PM Tuesday, January 21, 2020.  Provide written comments to the City of 

Cumberland, Department of Community Development by mail to 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, 

Maryland or email at lee.borror@cumberlandmd.gov.  This Amendment to the 2019 Community 

Development Block Grant Annual Plan will be considered by Mayor and City Council at the regular 

meeting on Tuesday, January 21, 2020 in Council Chambers at City Hall at 6:15 PM.    

   

ADV: Friday, December 20, 2019 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,597 - authorizing execution of a Bill of Sale with MD Broadband Cooperative, Inc. 

to sell, assign and deliver certain assets to MD Broadband relative to the MOU pertaining 

to the construction of fiber optic infrastructure in the area of downtown Cumberland   

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,597                    DATE:      January 21, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Bill of Sale by and 

between the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland and Maryland Broadband 

Cooperative, Inc., to sell, assign and deliver certain assets to Maryland Broadband 

relative to the Memorandum of Understanding pertaining to the construction of fiber 

optic infrastructure in the area of downtown Cumberland. 

 

 

       

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



BILL OF SALE 

 

 

The Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, a municipal corporation of the 

State of Maryland acting by and through its Mayor and City Council (the “Seller”) and 

MARYLAND BROADBAND COOPERATIVE, INC., a Maryland consumer cooperative corporation 

with its principal offices located at 2129A Northwood Drive, Salisbury, Maryland (the 

“Purchaser”) have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding contemporaneously herewith  

(the "Agreement"), whereby Seller has agreed to sell, assign and deliver to Purchaser, and 

Purchaser has agreed to purchase and acquire, certain assets.  All capitalized terms used herein 

without definition shall have the respective meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, Seller, for good and valuable consideration, as set forth in 

the Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby grants, 

bargains, sells, conveys, assigns, releases, transfers and delivers to Purchaser, its successors and 

assigns, absolutely to have and to hold the same forever, subject however to all rights of 

reversion contained in the Agreement, all of Seller’s rights, title and interest in and to, as well as 

good and marketable title to, the Fiber System, as defined in the Agreement and described in 

Exhibit 1 attached hereto, and Seller assigns to Purchaser all third party express or implied 

warranty rights relating to the construction of the Fiber System and materials incorporated into 

the Fiber System.  This Bill of Sale is being executed and delivered as a condition to the 

Agreement and is expressly hereby made subject to and shall have the benefits of the respective 

representations, warranties, covenants, terms, conditions, limitation and other provisions of the 

Agreement. 

Seller owns outright and has full legal right, title and authority to sell, transfer, 

convey, assign and deliver to Purchaser, and Purchaser hereby shall have, good, valid and 

marketable title to and ownership of the Fiber System, free and clear of any and all liens, 

encumbrances or other restrictions of every kind, nature, description or character whatsoever, 

including, without limitation, the claims or liens of any back or taxing authority, and any and all 

claims or rights of others. 

Purchaser shall quietly enjoy the Fiber System hereby sold, transferred, conveyed, 

assigned and delivered. 

Seller further covenants and agrees that it will, from time to time, make, execute 

and deliver or cause to be made, executed and delivered all such other instruments, documents 

and other assurances as Purchaser may reasonably require to confirm or more effectively convey, 

transfer to and vest in Purchaser title to the assets described above. 

This Bill of Sale shall be binding upon the Seller and its successors and assigns, 

and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Purchaser and its successors and assigns. 

 

[Signature Page Follows] 

 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller has caused this Bill of Sale to be executed in 

its name by its duly authorized officer as of ___________________, 2020. 

 

WITNESS:           MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND  

 

_______________________   By: _________________________________(SEAL) 

      Raymond M. Morris, Mayor  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





















Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,598 - authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City, 

the Cumberland Economic Development Commission, and the Allegany County 

Commissioners regarding the centralization of an economic development program for the 

City and the County 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,598                    DATE:      January 21, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Memorandum of 

Understanding by and between the Cumberland Economic Development Corporation, 

the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, and the Board of County Commissioners of 

Allegany County regarding the centralization of an economic development program for 

the City and the County. 

 

       

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



Page 1 of 16 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

 THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (this “Memorandum”), by and 

between CUMBERLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a 

Maryland not for profit corporation having its principal place of business in Allegany 

County, Maryland (“CEDC”); the MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, a Maryland municipal corporation (the “City”); and the 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ALLEGANY COUNTY, 

MARYLAND, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of 

Maryland (the “County”).  CEDC, the City, and the County are collectively the “Parties.” 

Explanation 

 CEDC was formed to maximize and centralize an effective economic development 

program for both the City and the County.  As an independent, not for profit corporation, 

CEDC has a Board of Directors (the “Board”), which has been and will be comprised of 

members of the City, the County, and the community with a combined purpose of making 

economic development a community priority and centralizing the operation of county-

wide economic development.  As a public and private partnership, the Parties believe that 

they will be able to assemble the resources of local governments to collectively, 

efficiently, and effectively promote economic development in the City of Cumberland 

and Allegany County. 

 CEDC and the City entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (the “City 

MOU”) on July 21, 2015, and CEDC and the City have worked cooperatively under the 

terms of the City MOU since that date.  CEDC, the City and the County believe that it is 



Page 2 of 16 
 

appropriate to advance the collective interests of the Parties by terminating the City MOU 

and replacing it with this Memorandum of Understanding to continue and to enhance the 

efforts to develop, promote and sustain economic development for the benefit of the City, 

the County, and its residents. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements hereinafter set forth 

and subject to the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding, the Parties agree, as 

follows: 

1. Recitals.  The Explanation set forth above is hereby incorporated as a 

substantive provision of this Memorandum. 

2. Effective Date.  This Memorandum shall be effective when fully signed by 

the Parties (the “Effective Date”). 

 3. CEDC Obligations.   

A. On or about December 2, 2014, the City adopted the Strategic 

Economic Development Plan that was produced by RKG Associates in collaboration with 

the City (the “RKG Plan”).  Pursuant to the City MOU, CEDC was responsible for 

implementing the RKG Plan.  CEDC shall have the responsibility of implementing the 

RKG Plan, as may be amended from time to time by the City in its sole discretion, and 

shall serve as the City’s exclusive agent with respect to the development, coordination, 

implementation and promotion of a proactive, comprehensive economic development 

program aimed at increasing the local tax base, attracting new employers, enabling 

existing employers to grow, and supporting the continued development of the arts and 

tourism industries. 



Page 3 of 16 
 

B. On or about August 22, 2019, the County adopted the Allegany 

County Economic Development Strategic Plan that was produced by Thomas P. Miller & 

Associates in collaboration with the County (the “County ED Plan”).  CEDC shall have 

the responsibility of implementing the County ED Plan, as may be amended from time to 

time by the County in its sole discretion, and shall serve as the County’s exclusive agent 

with respect to the development, coordination, implementation and promotion of a 

proactive, comprehensive economic development program aimed at increasing the local 

tax base, attracting new employers, enabling existing employers to grow, and supporting 

the continued development of the arts and tourism industries. 

C. It is understood that the Parties shall endeavor in good faith and on 

an ongoing basis to arrive at a mutually agreeable, single, comprehensive, coordinated 

economic development plan for Allegany County and all subdivisions thereof (the 

“Consolidated Plan”).  The Consolidated Plan is intended to replace the RKG Plan and 

County ED Plan and may, but shall not be required to, include various components 

thereof.  CEDC shall have the responsibility of implementing the Consolidated Plan as 

may be amended from time to time by the City and County.   

D. CEDC shall review the RKG Plan, the County ED Plan, and the 

Consolidated Plan from time to time and propose such changes or amendment thereto 

that CEDC deems necessary or desirable to best develop, promote and sustain economic 

development in Allegany County. 

E. The City and County, individually or collectively as the case may be, 

shall have the ultimate authority to adopt, rescind or amend a comprehensive economic 



Page 4 of 16 
 

development plan such as the RKG Plan, the County ED Plan and the Consolidated Plan.  

The Board shall have the authority to determine the manner and methods by which a 

comprehensive economic development plan is implemented. 

F. The work to be performed by CEDC in the exercise of those 

responsibilities and duties outlined in this Section 3 may include, but shall not be limited 

to, the matters set forth on Exhibit 1 which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

G. CEDC shall be funded by the City and the County as set forth in this 

Memorandum.  It is understood that the CEDC may also accept or solicit private funding, 

and secure other revenue and funding streams.  

H. CEDC shall be governed by the “Board.”  The Board shall be 

comprised of: (i) one member of the governing body of the City, i.e., the Mayor or a 

Councilperson; (ii) two members of the governing body of the County, i.e., two 

Commissioners; and (iii) four individuals in good standing from the private sector that 

possess the requisite business acumen, expertise and experience, i.e., the at-large 

positions.  Each at-large position shall have a two-year term.  The terms of the at-large 

positions shall be staggered.  As of the Effective Date, the at-large positions shall be 

filled by the four at-large positions of the then-current CEDC Board.  Any Board member 

may nominate an individual to fill a vacant at-large position.  Vacant at-large positions 

shall be filled by unanimous vote of the Board.       

I. The Board shall have all discretion as to the operational and 

administrative controls of CEDC.  CEDC shall maintain its own computer systems, books 



Page 5 of 16 
 

and records, and it shall be solely responsible for the content of its web-based design and 

programs.  CEDC shall maintain its own business accounts. 

J. The staff of CEDC shall be comprised of an Executive Director and 

such other staff as the Board shall determine from time to time (collectively the “CEDC 

Staff”).  CEDC Staff shall be, at the election of the Board, employees of the County and 

assigned to the CEDC.  The Board shall have all discretion as to the operational and 

administrative control of CEDC Staff.  Commencing upon the Effective Date and 

concluding not later than April 1, 2020 (the “Transition Period”), the Executive Director 

of CEDC and the County shall endeavor to identify and assign to the CEDC the 

appropriate County staff and consultants to provide economic development services 

contemplated by this Memorandum, including, without limitation: (1) Gregory Hildreth, 

Economic Development Specialist; (2) Ashli Workman, Director of Tourism; and (3) 

Jessica L. Palumbo, Marketing and Sale Manager.   

K. CEDC shall work in collaboration with employees and staff of the 

City and the County, but CEDC shall not be subject to the direction and control of the 

County, the City, or its employees.  The Board shall maintain the right to direct and 

control CEDC and CEDC Staff. 

L. CEDC and its Staff shall occupy such offices at such locations as are 

determined by the Board.  As of the Effective Date, it is understood that the CEDC will 

relocate its office from 60 Pershing Street, Cumberland, MD to a new location in or 

around Cumberland, MD that is sufficient and suitable to accommodate the expansion of 

its operations pursuant to this Memorandum.  Further, it is understood by the Parties that 



Page 6 of 16 
 

the CEDC is attempting to utilize a Governor’s Capital Grant in the amount of $420,000 

to acquire a facility in Cumberland, Maryland that provides suitable accommodations for 

CEDC’s offices and additional space needed to promote other economic development 

efforts such as, but not limited to, business incubation and business attraction.  CEDC 

shall occupy its new offices no later than April 1, 2020. 

M. CEDC shall promptly change its name to the “Allegany 

Development Corporation,” or such other name the Parties may agree upon in writing, by 

the filing of Articles of Amendment with the Maryland Department Of Assessment and 

Taxation. 

N. Unless and until otherwise modified by mutual agreement of the 

Parties, CEDC shall conduct formal monthly work sessions with the City and County, 

either individually or jointly, to review economic development goals, plans, programs, 

projects, activities and progress. 

O. CEDC shall endeavor in good faith to maintain frequent 

communication with the City and County, and to keep the City and County reasonably 

informed regarding CEDC economic development activities.  

P. CEDC shall be subject to the audit requirements that apply to the 

City and the County and copies of all audits, financial statements, and notes to financial 

statements from the auditors shall be disclosed to the City and the County upon 

completion. 

Q. CEDC has determined that it is subject to the Maryland Open 

Meetings Act and shall continue to conduct itself in accordance with the terms of the Act. 



Page 7 of 16 
 

R. CEDC has determined that it is subject to the Maryland Public 

Information Act and shall continue to conduct itself in accordance with the terms of the 

Act. 

S. CEDC shall amend its Bylaws as needed to address any provision 

thereof which is inconsistent with this Memorandum, including, without limitation, the 

provisions of Section 3.H. above. 

 4. City’s Obligations.   

A. The City shall support the efforts of CEDC in pursuit of its purposes 

and goals. 

B. During the Transition Period: (i) the City shall continue to fund its 

annual operational appropriation for CEDC in an amount not less than the amount 

established in the City MOU, i.e., $350,000.00 (the “City Annual Appropriation”); (ii) 

the City Annual Appropriation shall be paid to CEDC consistent with the terms and 

conditions of the City MOU applicable to the same; (iii) the Parties shall negotiate in 

good faith to establish the amount of the City Annual Appropriation beyond April 1, 

2020 that will enable the CEDC to carry out the intent and purpose of this Memorandum.  

It shall be the obligation of the Parties to reach an agreement on or before April 1, 2020, 

as to the amount of the City Annual Appropriation beyond April 1, 2020.  In the event 

that the Parties fail to timely reach an agreement as to the amount of the City Annual 

Appropriation for CEDC beyond April 1, 2020, this Memorandum shall terminate and the 

City and CEDC shall revert to the City MOU as if the same had never been revoked or 

terminated pursuant to this Memorandum.  fund an annual operational appropriation in an 



Page 8 of 16 
 

amount not less than Three Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350,000.00) to CEDC (the 

“City Annual Appropriation”). 

C. The City Annual Appropriation shall be paid to CEDC in equal 

semi-annual payments on July 1st and January 1st, or at such other times mutually agreed 

upon by CEDC and City. 

D. The City Annual Appropriation shall not be contingent upon any 

matter other than the CEDC’s fulfillment of this Memorandum during the applicable 

appropriation period. 

E. The City shall have the right, but not the obligation, to make such 

other and further funding contributions to CEDC as the City, in its sole discretion, may 

from time to time determine. 

F. The City shall work cooperatively and collaboratively with CEDC. 

G. The City shall endeavor in good faith to maintain frequent 

communication with CEDC, and to keep CEDC reasonably informed regarding City 

operations and affairs.  

H. The City shall convey to CEDC certain real estate measuring about 

eight acres that was formerly Memorial Hospital.  Development of the real estate by 

CEDC shall be in a manner and for purposes agreed upon by the City and CEDC.  CEDC 

shall oversee the future development of the real estate.  Any net proceeds realized from 

the sale of the real estate shall be placed in a special fund by CEDC and utilized for 

development of additional real estate for purposes of business parks, construction of shell 

buildings, and/or the up-fitting and building of special use buildings, all of which will be 



Page 9 of 16 
 

utilized to recruit new businesses or encourage the expansion of existing businesses 

within the City. 

5. County’s Obligations.   

A. The County shall support the efforts of CEDC in pursuit of its 

purposes and goals. 

B. During the Transition Period: (i) the County shall continue to fund 

its annual operational appropriation for tourism and economic development in an amount 

not less than the amount established in its current County budget; (ii) the County shall 

utilize funds appropriated for tourism and economic development in its current County 

budget to fully fund the cost of County staff assigned to CEDC and the cost of services 

provided by CEDC on behalf of the County pursuant to this Memorandum; (iii) the 

Parties shall negotiate in good faith to establish the amount of funding due and payable 

by the County to CEDC beyond April 1, 2020 that will enable CEDC to carry out the 

intent and purpose of this Memorandum (the “County Annual Appropriation”).  It shall 

be the obligation of the Parties to reach an agreement on or before April 1, 2020, as to the 

amount of the County Annual Appropriation beyond April 1, 2020.  In the event that the 

Parties fail to timely reach an agreement as to the amount of the County Annual 

Appropriation for CEDC beyond April 1, 2020, this Memorandum shall terminate and the 

City and CEDC shall revert to the City MOU as if the same had never been revoked or 

terminated pursuant to this Memorandum.  fund an annual operational appropriation in an 

amount not less than Three Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350,000.00) to CEDC (the 

“City Annual Appropriat 



Page 10 of 16 
 

C. Upon request of CEDC, the County shall provide not more than two 

(2) automobiles to CEDC.  The County shall pay all costs associated with the acquisition, 

insurance, maintenance, and repairs for any automobile supplied to CEDC.   

D. The County shall deduct from the County Annual Appropriation the 

amount required to pay salaries and benefits to CEDC Staff and the cost of automobiles 

supplied to the CEDC.  The balance of the County Annual Appropriation shall be paid to 

CEDC in equal semi-annual payments on July 1st and January 1st, or at such other times 

mutually agreed upon by CEDC and the County. 

E. The County Annual Appropriation shall not be contingent upon any 

matter other than the CEDC’s fulfillment of this Memorandum during the applicable 

appropriation period. 

F. The County shall have the right, but not the obligation, to make such 

other and further funding contributions to CEDC as the County, in its sole discretion, 

may from time to time determine. 

G. The County shall work cooperatively and collaboratively with 

CEDC. 

H. The County shall endeavor in good faith to maintain frequent 

communication with CEDC, and to keep CEDC reasonably informed regarding County 

operations and affairs.  

I. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require the transfer of 

any real estate from the County to CEDC, including, but not limited to, County owned 

properties within its business parks. 



Page 11 of 16 
 

6. Termination.  This Memorandum may be terminated by any Party upon not 

less than one hundred eighty (180) days prior written notice to all other Parties.  Upon 

termination of this Memorandum by the County, CEDC and the City shall revert to the 

City MOU. 

7. Governing Law.  The Parties agree that this Memorandum shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Maryland. 

8. Notices.  

 A. Any communication required or permitted by this Memorandum 

must be in writing, except as expressly provided otherwise in this Memorandum. 

 B. Any communication shall be sufficiently given and deemed given 

when delivered by hand or five (5) days after being mailed by first-class mail, postage 

prepaid, and addressed as follows: 

  (1) If to CEDC, to: 

   Paul J. Kelly, Jr., 

   Executive Director of the CEDC 

   60 Pershing Street 

   Cumberland, MD  21502 

 

  (2) If to the City, to: 

   Mayor Raymond Morriss 

   Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

57 N. Liberty Street 

   Cumberland, MD  21502 

 

  (3) If to the County, to: 

   President Jacob C. Shade,  

   Board of County Commissioners 

   701 Kelly Road 

   Cumberland, MD  21502 



Page 12 of 16 
 

  C. Any communications hereunder sent to one party shall also be sent 

to each of the other Parties. 

  D. Any addressee may designate additional or different addresses for 

communications by notice given under this Paragraph to each of the others. 

 9. Non-Business Days.  If the date for making any payment or the last day for 

performance of any act or the exercising of any right shall not be a Business Day, such 

payment shall be made or act performed or right exercised on or before the next 

preceding Business Day. 

 10. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Memorandum, or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent be found to be 

invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Memorandum and any 

application thereof shall, nevertheless, continue in full force and effect without being 

impaired or invalidated in any way.  

11. Entire Memorandum; Amendments.  This Memorandum constitutes the 

entire contract between the Parties, and this Memorandum shall not be changed except in 

writing signed by all of the Parties. 

 12. Binding Effect.  Subject to the specific provisions of this Memorandum, 

this Memorandum shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by 

the Parties and their respective successors and assigns. 

 13. Time.  Time is of the essence in this Memorandum and each and all of its 

provisions. 



Page 13 of 16 
 

 14. Liability of Officers and Agents.  No officer, agent or employee of the City, 

the County or CEDC shall be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason 

of the execution of this Memorandum or any other documents related to the transactions 

contemplated hereby.  Such officers, agents, or employees shall be deemed to execute 

such documents in their official capacities only, and not in their individual capacities.  

This Paragraph shall not relieve any such officer, agent or employee from the 

performance of any official duty provided by law. 

 15. Counterparts.  This Memorandum may be executed in several counterparts, 

including separate counterparts.  Each shall be an original, but all of them together 

constitute the same instrument. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Memorandum to be 

executed in their corporate names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date first 

above written. 

 

ATTEST:     CUMBERLAND ECONOMIC  

      DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 

 

_______________________________ By______________________________(SEAL) 

       Paul J. Kelly, Jr. 

       Executive Director 

 

 

ATTEST:     MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

      CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND 

 

 

_______________________________ By______________________________(SEAL) 

       Raymond Morriss 

       Mayor 



Page 14 of 16 
 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      

 

 

_______________________________ By______________________________(SEAL) 

       Jacob Shade 

  President  



Page 15 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT NO. 1 
 

1. Developing, implementing and updating plans which target and recruit companies 

to locate new businesses within Allegany County or expand within the Allegany 

County. 

 

2. Developing, implementing and updating marketing plans and materials to recruit 

new businesses to Allegany County and encourage existing businesses to expand 

within Allegany County. 

 

3. Managing business recruitment prospects that are considering locating new or 

expanding existing businesses within Allegany County. 

 

4. Developing, implementing and updating plans to retain businesses within the 

Allegany County. 

 

5. Developing, implementing and updating plans to promote and support 

entrepreneurial ventures and small business development activities within 

Allegany County. 

 

6. Maintaining regular contact with existing businesses located within Allegany 

County. 

 

7. Hiring experts, professionals, consultants, accountants and lawyers to advance 

CEDC business and its efforts to develop, promote and sustain economic 

development within Allegany County. 

 

8. Maintaining contact with and making presentations to local civic and business 

organizations within Allegany County that are important supporters of and 

stakeholders in the economic development efforts of the City, the County and 

CEDC. 

 

9. Participating in organizations and associations which develop, promote and sustain 

economic development efforts in Allegany County and the region, including, 

without limitation, the Greater Cumberland Committee, the Allegany County 

Chamber of Commerce, and the Maryland Economic Development Association 

(“MEDA”). 

 

10. Developing, implementing and updating work force development plans and 

strategies, and coordinating work force development efforts with educational 

institutions and government agencies tasked with promoting work force 

development. 

 



Page 16 of 16 
 

11. Developing, implementing and updating tourism plans and strategies. 

 

12. Formulating recommendations for the improvement of City and County operations 

that would serve to develop, promote and sustain economic development within 

Allegany County. 

 

13. Formulating recommendations for the improvement of City and County 

communications with important supporters of and stakeholders in Allegany 

County economic development activities. 

 

14. Formulating recommendations for the creation of partnerships by and between the 

City, the County and/or important community supporters and stakeholders relative 

to Allegany County economic development efforts. 

 

15. Providing timely reports to the City and the County as described herein. 

 

16. Apply for grants and other funding that advance economic development interests. 

 

17. Representing the City and the County at local, state, national, and international 

economic development events. 

 

18. Developing and implementing plans to promote Allegany County as a viable place 

for business, recreation, and residency. 

 

19. Creating and maintaining a catalog of assets to be leveraged for public and private 

investment. 

 

20. Marketing City and County owned assets for business creation, attraction, 

expansion and retention efforts in Allegany County. 

 

21. Acquiring and managing assets to develop, promote and sustain economic 

development efforts in Allegany County. 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,599 - authorizing execution of an Amendment to the 2017 MHAA Grant - Canal 

Place Heritage Area Partnership Programming (FY17) pertaining to several revised 

financial documentation policies for awarded grants  

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,599                    DATE:      January 21, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute an Amendment to the 

2017 MHAA Grant – Canal Place Heritage Area Partnership Programming (FY17) 

pertaining to several revised financial documentation policies for awarded grants. 

 

 

       

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 






















































	Top
	1. Closed - 5:00 p.m.
	2. CLosed - Ex Sess
	1. Open Session
	1. Summary Statement
	1. Presentation - Census
	2. Presentation - Carver
	. Report - Admin. Services Monthly Report - November 2019
	Admin Svcs Monthly Rep Nov 2019

	. Report - Engineering Div. Monthly Report November 2019
	2019-11 Eng Div Monthly Report

	. Report - Maintenance Division Monthly Report - December 2019
	Maint Division Report Dec  2019

	. Report - Fire Dept. Monthly Report - December 2019
	SKM_C25820010816100

	. Report - Police Dept. Monthly Report - December 2019
	December 2019

	. Report - Utilities - Treatment Plants Monthly Reports for Nov 2019
	Utilities - Treatment Plants Monthly Report - Nov 2019

	. Report-Utilities Div. F/W/S Monthly Report - December 2019
	Utilities Division WATER-SEWER-FLOOD Monthly Report December 2019

	1. Minutes - Exec.& Work Session -10-8-19; Work & Special Public Meeting -10-22-19, & Exec, Reg. & Work Session -11-5-19
	Closed Session Minutes 10-8-19-Summary Page
	Work Session Mins-Pt1&2 10-08-19
	M&amp;CC Special Public Meeting Minutes 10-22-19
	Work Session Mins 10-22-19
	M&CC Regular Meeting Minutes 11-5-19
	Work Session Mins 11-05-19
	Closed Session 11-5-19 Cover Sheet Only

	. Order 26,584 C.O.No.1 Cumb.St.Retaining Wall 24-18-M - First Fruits
	2020-01-21 Order 26584 CO No 1- Cumb.St.RetainingWall 24-18-M-FirstFruits
	Change Order Form
	Agenda Summary Sheet-ChangeOrder

	. Order 26,585 C.O.1 - Playground Equip - Miracle Rec.-Taylor Sports
	2020-01-21 Order 26585 C.O.1-AddPrevailingWageRates-Miracle-TaylorSports
	proposal
	Agenda Summary Sheet - Miracle-Taylor Sports CO-1

	. Order 26,586 Koon Dam Sidewalk Replacement  38-19-BR - Harbel
	2020-01-21 Order 26586 Koon Dam Sidewalks-Ph.3  38-19-BR
	38-19-BR - Certified Bid Tabulation
	Agenda Work Sheet 38-19-BR

	. Order 26,587 Surplus 2011 Int'l Ambulance
	2020-01-21 Order 26587 Surplus Ambulance

	. Order 26,588 GOCCP FY20 Police Recruitment and Retention Grant
	2020-01-21 Order 26,588 GOCCP Recruitment&Retention Grant-FY20
	FY20 Police recruitment &amp; retention grant
	FY20 Police recruitment &amp; retention grant

	. Order 26,589  New Utility Vehicles Bids -Thomas Hyundai and Diehl's Ford
	2020-01-21 Order 26589-Utility vehicles Thomas Hyundai & Diehl's Ford
	Council Agenda Summary FY20 for Midsize SUV and 2 Work Trucks
	Bid Summary - Utility Vehicles Dec 2019

	. Order 26,590 - Sole Source- Repair Rotating Mechanical Screens-Evitts Creek Pump Station-Ruby&Sons
	2020-01-21 Order 26590-Sole Source-Ruby&Sons-Screens Repair
	Marshall Ruby Estimate - Repair Mech Screens
	Approval for Repair of Mechanical Screens - Evitts

	. Order 26,591 - Sole Source- Repair 25 High Voltage Breakers at WRF - CAMCO, Inc.
	2020-01-21 Order 26591-Sole Source-HighVoltageBreakersRepairs-WRF - CAMCOinc
	Camco Quote-Bid Repair of Breakers
	Approval - Repair High Volt Breakers

	. Order 26,592 - ECWC Appointment - Simmons
	2020-01-21 Order 26592 - ECSC appointment Anita Simmons

	. Order 26,593 Surplus 2007 Aspen
	2020-01-21 Order 26593 Surplus 2007 Aspen C3I

	. Order 26,594 Investment Policy
	2020-01-21 Order 26594 Investment Policy
	Investment Policy_revised red lined

	. Order 26,595 surplus 400 N. Mechanic
	2019-09-03 Order 26595 Surplus 400 N Mechanic St
	400 0N Mechanic St Deedsd

	. Order 26,596 CDBG Amendment 7 Denture
	2020-01-21 Order 26596 CDBG Amendment 7
	CDBG Amendment 7 Denture Program

	. Order 26,597 Bill of Sale MD Broadband
	2019-09-03 Order 26597 MD Broadband Bill of Sale
	MD Broadband Bill of Sale
	MD Broadband Bill of Sale - Exhibit A

	. Order 26598 MOU CEDC
	2019-09-03 Order 26598 MOU CEDC
	Memorandum Of Understanding (01-13-2020 version)

	. Order 26,599 MHAA Grant Amendment
	2019-09-03 Order 26599 MD Heritage Area Grant
	Amendment 2017 MHAA Grant

	Bottom

